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LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT ({continued)

The directors present their Annual Report and the audited financial statcments for the year ended 31 March 2012

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Le Grand Anmington Limited group’s (the Group) principal activity during the year was property investment The
acuvity of the Group 1s expected to continue at similar levels for the foreseeable future

The subsidiary and associated undertakings principally affecting the losses or net assets of the Group n the year are histed
m notes 11 and 12 to the financial statements

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Business Review which 1s provided n the Annual Report provides details of the Group’s principal acuvities and
operations and 1s incorporated by reference into the Directors’ Report

DEIRECTORS

The directors who served during the year were

R N Barr resigned 26 January 2012
A Chadd appomnted 26 January 2012
J C Hopkins resigned 20 March 2012

C Bamnes appointed 20 March 2012
A Chadd resigned 9 July 2012

S Webber appointed 9 July 2012

The directors had no interests in the shares of the Company or any other company withun the Le Grand Anmington Limued
Group

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions were 1n place for all directors of the Company for the current year and the
preceding year

OUR GOVERNANCE
Board of Directors
A Iist of Diarectors who have served during the year, and subsequently, 1s shown above

Details of the composition, remut and frequency of meetings of the Board and 1ts Commuttees are shown at Appendix Five

GOING CONCERN

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate
resources to continue tn operational existence for the foreseeable future  Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis 1n preparing the annual report and accounts

Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found n note 1 ‘Accounung Policies’ 1n the
financial statements

OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group takes 11s corporate and social responsibilites seriously, both in respect of employees and the communities 1n
which 1t operates We aim, wherever possible, to adopt business practices that are economucally, socially and
environmentally sustainable and to promote these with whom we work A more detailed statement of our responsibilities 1s
set out 1n Appendix Four



LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

POLICY ON PAYMENT OF CREDITORS

The Group's policy 1s to agree terms of payment with suppliers and these normally provide for payment withun 30 days
after the date of the 1voice, except where other arrangements have been negotiated It 1s the policy of the Company to
abide by the agreed terms of payment, provided the suppher performs according to the terms of the contract

As the Group owed £1 1 mullion to trade creditors at 31 March 2012 (2011 £1 4 million), the number of days to be shown
in this report, to comply with the provisions of Accounting Regulations (S1 2008/410) schedule 7 12, 18 23 1 days (2011
28 6 days)

Financial imstruments and nsk management policies are covered in note 21
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Post balance sheet events are referred to n note 35

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable
law and regulations

Company law requires the directors 1o prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law the directors must not approve
the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state ot atfairs of the Company
and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period In prepaning these financial statements, the directors are required
to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

®
® make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
® state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, and

L

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless i1t 15 1napproprate to presume that the Company will
continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and cxplain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply wath the Compames Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregulanies




LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

AUDITOR
Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this annual report confirms that

¢ 5o far as the director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware,
and

s the director has taken all the steps that he ought (o have taken das a director to make humself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation (s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the Companies Act 2006

Delortte LLP have expressed their willingness 1o continue 1n office as auditor and arrangements have been put 1n place for
them to be reappointed as auditor 1n the absence of an Annual General Meeting

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

Ll

R Luft
Secretary

8 March 2013




LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW

This Business Review describes the current and future trends and factors affecting the development, performance and
position of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2012

This Business Review has been prepared solely to assist members to assess the Board’s strategies and their potental to
succeed This Review should not be relied upon by any other party, or for any other purpose Forward-locking statements
are made by the directors 1n good faith based on information available to them at the itme and up untl the date on which
the Report was approved Forward-looking statements should be regarded with caution because of the inherent
uncertainties 1n economic trends and business risks

SELECTED HIGHLIGHTS 2011/12

Carrying value of group investment properties at year-end was £4 5 billion up 18 4% from £3 8 billion
Group operating profit up 3 6% to £146 7 million from £141 6 million

Annington Property Limited (APL) leases 39,970 (2011 40,113) properties to the Secretary of State for Defence
(SoSD), generating £158 9 muilion (2011 £155 8 million) rent per annum

The Group leases 2,058 (2011 2,130) properties on short-term leases, generating £19 5 million (2011 £192
mullion) rent per annum

Properties held for short-term, bulk leases to the SoSD increased o 844 (2011 817)

The Group sold 485 properties generating £72 7 milhon sales income (2011 381 properues generaung £62 7 mullion
of income)

The Homes Group financing vehicles repaid debt principal of £115 6 mulhion (2011 £144 3 million)

The Profit Share agreement ended on 5 November 2011 Over the period of the Profit Share Agreement, the Group
has paid a total £161 2 million to HM Treasury




LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

THE GROUP

The Group consists of three distinct Subgroups (refer to Group Structure on page 7), each described in more detail 1a
Appendices One to Three

* Annington Homes Limuted Subgroup (together with subsidiaries, the Homes Subgroup) — Appendix
One

¢+ Annngton Rentals (Holdings) Limited Subgroup (together with subsidiaries, the Rentals Subgroup) —-
Appencix Two

* Anmngton Developments (Holdings) Limited Subgroup (together with subsidiaries, the Developments
Subgroup) — Appendix Three

The long-term financial strategy of the Group, the quality and strength of the rental income stream and the core
organisational structure has meant that the Group was well prepared for the downturn 1n market activity and has
positioned 1tself to weather the current economic environment

OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE AND ECONOMIC BENEFIT
Le Grand Annington Limuted has thirteen individual shareholders, with ne individual shareholder having overall control
As at the year end, the shares 1ssued by Annington Holdings ple, Le Grand Anningten Limited’s direct subsidiary, were
owned as follows

Le Grand Annington Limited 52%

E J Filkin 24%

Aur Vice Marshal (Ret’d) A F C Hunter 24%
As at 31 March 2012, the beneficial interest 1n Anmington Homes Limited 1s owned by Nomura Investments (AH)

Limited (‘NIAH’), a subsidhary of Nomura International plc, through 1ssued warrants which give NIAH the night to
exercise at any time 1n exchange for the share capital of Anmington Homes Limuted (AHL)

NIAH also owns ‘cash settled’ warrants 1ssued by Annington Rentals (Holdings) Limited and Annington Developments
(Holdings) Limited, giving NIAH the economic benefit of these two subsidiary groups

Nomura’s interest 1s managed on a day-to-day basis by Annington Management Services (Guernsey) Limited which s
advised by Terra Firma Capital Partners Limuted {"TFCP’) TFCP typically provides advice and guidance in respect of
the financial and strategic direction of the Group

Following a series of transactions in December 2012, described 1n more detail at note 35, Annington Holdings ple, the
direct subsidiary of Le Grand Annington Limsted disposed of its interests n the remainder of the group Following this
transaction, Annington Hold:ngs Plc 15 the only and direct subsidiary of Le Grand Annington Limited




LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

GROUP STRUCTURE AS AT 31 MARCH 2012

(" premamces )
(2
yepng  §
ey
oueuy oy
Y
{uonosunces wwo)
HTon —
DRy uoury
| NI
e ™
fAucdioy frrume Apsedosg)
Juswebolow) poyun Ausdald
peLy] seasLION
ueiduutny uotuluny
. S
s N - =~
- ~ (85045 /d roruniang) {upo] At ] fiab yso) paywn palun
HAWD sTuRIeH 0377 HQwD PN B8jURIEND PN TON DURIH pRyW 38 | e v sfupoy Awppqng
Y g yuRL LTI ucilupuvy [r..- T 1TV uoduiuuy ui Uy ucidujuuy
[ uyrgoiny \. o \, v
\. J ] | |
%56 %100 _
Howo sthundijiazen WIAION 01 paass| l— payum
— SIURLIEM 9EY SL SIWCK uoifujuuy
syanneg | —
{ ™y { A ™ { ™
Hawo HOWS penup {8ac0) P {OiH 1iti] poiun [1esauRio0) pauwn Fojn papum payun
il ] 1810M8 uoysuuuY uoifuiuuy Juswalieuey {9 on)swruey [t on) sIeavey {z eN| sjesuey
uvorduuy X6 b2 uoy By uoiBupuuy sprAnunay spsiaiuno) sjejuay uoiBulutng uoiBujuuy vy oy
\, J \ v /X /
%1 2_I||I£ { I J
I
s ™ 1 f A
pern peapy peuw) peiwn peyun pajwn peILT
sustey sjoBwzIeAL) sjuszcdopansg [ on)siemey (s oM] simusy [£oN] seruoy fmuey
verfuiuy fea) uatuluuy uosujuiy ueiIuLy uacyRuluuy uchiiuwy volupuuy
1\ J J \. J
I | ] 1 ] ] |
paywn {sBuIp1ok) PaYWI (SELIPIOH)
RIMUGN O3 paassI Swewdeqsssg sewey RINWON O1 panss)
L
SJURLIEM 556 55 :D&Hr__ uuy :Qﬂu:_::( FUMLIEM G55 55
—
4 $BupioH

uoBuuy

paywn
wozlujuuy
pueg




LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW {continued)
REMUNERATION REPORT

The Nomination and Remuneration Commuttee meets as required but at least annually to review all salary, bonus, Long
Term Incenuve Plans (LTIPs) and other benefits available to directors and staff, to ensure remuneration packages
continue to be compettive 1n order to atiract, retain and motivate experienced individuals and to drnive the Group forward
n achieving its objectives

All employees are employed by the Group through Annington Management Limited as lead employer It has always
been the Group’s policy to maintain a small core team to manage the acuvities of the Group and 10 outsource certain
operational activities to other organisations This has ailowed Annington to access professional services as required, not
only avouding direct employment but also enabling the Group to more efficiently manage the fluctuating actuivity levels in
the port{olio across England and Wales Where employee turnover has occurred, the Group has adapied its structure to
meet current and expected future requirements

The Group operates an annual staff appraisal process, requiring managers and their staff to discuss the year completed, to
address any issues arising and to provide staff development where appropriate These meetings are also used to set
objectives for the coming year The apprarsal form 1s reviewed by the relevant director and each individual 15 ‘scored’
across a series of headings These scores are then used to calibrate discretonary annual bonus awards These annual
bonus awards are subsequently used as a basis for the LTIP calculation The appraisal process has been developed
during the year to ensure alignment with the requirements of the annual bonus and long-term incentive processes  As in
previous years, all staff appraisais are subject to review by the Deputy Chairman

Details of directors’ remuneration are included 1n note 4

PROPERTY MARKET OVERVIEW AND OPERATIONS

The 2011/12 year has followed the trend of the previous two years The property market and the wider UK economy both
expenenced challenges House prices remained stable, albeit flat, ending the year down just less than 19% The sales
market has been characterised by low sales volumes but was buoyed at the end of the period by increased activity This
increase 1s attributed te first ume buyers trying to purchase before the stamp duty relief ended 1n March Rental inflation
continued to increase during the period, with LSL Property Services ple reporting annual rental inflation of 2 7%

Although there were regional vanations, the fundamentals of the sales market remained largely unchanged throughout
the year with demand supported by low interest rates, extensive use of forbearance by lenders and constrained supply
The Halifax recorded a 0 6% decline in house prices 1n the financial year, identical to the Land Registry’s data with the
Nationwide recording a modest increase of 0 2% This spread was typical of monthly movements during the year so, on
average, Annington’s forecasts for nil growth over the period proved to be accurate

These figures mask the growing divergence of performance in the year between the regional markets and central London
According to data from the Land Registry, regional markets remained static or fell with Wales and the North East faring
worslt with price falls of 5 5% and 2 8% respectively At the same ume, London prices rose by an average of O 7% with
the South East gaiming 0 3% The contrast 1n the performance of different regions 1s ighlighted by significant growth i
prime central London locations such as Westminster (up 12 8% for the year) or Kensington and Chelsea (up 10 8% for
the year)}

According to data released by the HMRC, the 869,000 sales during the 2011 calendar year were the second lowest level
stnce records began 1n 1978, eclipsed only by 2009’s figures of 848,000 and set against a peak of 1,669,000 in 2006
Such a low level of acuvity within the market has created volatlity in short term measures of house prices, with many
mdices showing small monthly movements that over a longer penod turn out not to be sigmficant The current inflation
trend 15 downward, with CPI inflauon dechining from 3 5% 1n March 2012 to 2 8% in May 2012 Low volumes and small
annual house price increases may lead to a dechine 1n real term house prices over the medium term

In April, fears that the UK economy had been in recesston for the later part of 2011/12 were confirmed when the ONS
released a preliminary estimate of a 0 2% fall in GDP for the March quarter, following the 0 3% dechine 1n the December
2011 quarter The csumate of 0 2% dechine has subsequently been revised down to a decline of 0 3% in the March
quarter This reversal of growth in the UK economy coincides with increased worries about the stability of the Eurozone
and the impact on the United Kingdom Economic growth 1s expected to remain muted through 2012 whalst events in the
Eurozone will continue to create uncertainty




LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED
BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

PROPERTY MARKET OVERVIEW AND OPERATIONS (continued)

The mortgage market remained depressed through the year The lack of mortgage availability continued to be a feature of
the market placec with 2011 gross mortgage volumes of ¢ £138 billion (per The Council of Mortgage Lenders) showing
no real improvement on 2010 and only a little over a third of the peak 1n 2007 when they steod 1n excess of £363 billion
2011 did se¢ some improvement 1n mortigage product and ¢hoice with more high loan-to-value morigages on offer, but
these were not widespread Funding a deposit still rematned an obstacle to accessing a house purchase, high deposits
were still requested by lenders leaving rental as the only option for many intending first ime buyers

The Group’s operauons 1n 2011/12 reflect the continued low numbers of units released by the SoSD, only 143 properues
on 16 sites were returned to Anmington in the year The ongoing low level of releases 15 attributed to The Strategic
Defence and Security Review (2010) (SDSR), which has given nse to a series of sub-studies which could have a
profound 1mpact on the future of service famihes’ accommodation Uniil all the decisions have been made and certainty
can be provided —the sub-studies are due to report from autumn 2012 — no decisions on the future of housing will be
made The objective of SDSR 1s to create ‘Future Force 2020°, a new style Navy, Army and Air Force and will result 1n a
significant reduction of total force strength and a ranonalisation and redeployment of the defence estate It 1s hkely that
release levels will remain at very low levets in the short term, before increasing 1n the medium term

Annington remains well positioned to take advantage of the current market conditions, swatching o renial strategies
where the sales market 15 poor and average rents are rnising At 31 March, the Group was renting 989 properties
previously released from the retamned estate (2011 501)

The outlook for the future 1s that average prices during 2012/13 are likely to remain flat but with significant regional
variauons, with London and the South East better placed for recovery than other parts of the country Mortgage
avatlability will remain constrained and the construction and house-building sector will struggle to show any signs of a
meaningful recovery

All corporate and departmental objectives were achieved and the appraisals process noted some excellent performances
from staff

ANNINGTON HOMES LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES (HOMES SUBGROUP)
Objectives and Strategy

Background to the Homes Subgroup 1s shown at Appendix One

Financing

A summary of the Homes Subgroup financing arrangements 15 contained within Appendix One

Operations

Up to 31 March 2012, SoSD had released 15,084 (2011 14,941) properties from the Retained Estate and 179 related
assets (2011 177) to the Homes Subgroup, 1n addition to the orginal 2,374 in the Surplus Estate

As at the end of March 2012, a total of 16,780 properties (2011 16,407) from the onginal MQE have been sold
(including the Surplus Estate but excluding related asscts), a further 399 (2011 558) were rented to third party
compames and private individuals and a total of 362 (2011 340) properues were held pending planning consent for
redevelopment

Sales activity continues on a restricted number of sites Following the bulk sale of 124 properties at St Eval in June 2011,
the majonty of sites that had previously caused logistical problems due to large concentrations of properties 1n one area
have now been sold The release of 88 properties at Rowner 1n Portsmouth, raised concerns that similar 1ssues nught arise
again The strategy selected by the Homes Subgroup for this site 1s a staged programme of refurbishment and sale of
these properties This strategy has been designed to mimmise the impact of concentration whilst providing the most
efficient use of resources The site launched 1n May 2012 with 490 prospective purchasers visiting the site 1n that month

The results to date have alleviated the original concerns




LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Homes Subgroup (continued)

Operations (continued)

The Profit Share Agreement with the SoSD ended on 5 November 2011 A percentage of the profit on all sales up to this
date had to be paid to the MoD The final settlement of the profit share 1s expected to be finalised during 2012 Payments
1o HM Treasury since the original acquisition currently stand at £161,233K (2011 £161,233K)

The low release levels experienced over the last five years have continued, with a total of 143 (2011 275) umits released
in the year The most recent forecast for 2012-13 1s that 140 properties could be released, although to date termination
notices have only been received 1n respect of 5 units  The trend of lower volumes of releases 1s expected to continue over
the short term, at least unul the MoD’s strategy reviews have been completed and the implementation of new policy
commences

Release levels for the last 5 years have been

Y/e 31 March Number of released units
2008 256
2009 468
2010 510
20t1 275
2012 143

Strategic third party relattonships remain important 1n helping potential purchasers acquire properties from Annington,
particularly first-time buyers Relatonships with estate agencies, an Independent Financial Adviser and coaveyancing
solicitors continuc to ensure that sales progress smoothly Similar arrangements exist with surveyors and contractors
across a range of disciplines to ensure that building and refurbishment works are well managed

Annington 1s also a partner 1n the Inghis Consortium LLP’s (ICLLP) development known as Millbrook Park (in north
Londeon) Annington has a 28 55% share and the scheme 15 expected to deliver approximately £85,000K (with HPI) n
land value over a 10 year period The long awaited and hard fought planning perrmssion was finally obtained 1n 2011 as
well as a completed S 106 and an approved Design Code This allowed the ICLLP to start infrastructure and demolition
works in January 2012 The first two phases of land have been marketed and sales have already been agreed with
sclected national house builders

Performance

The Homes Subgroup made a loss before taxation of £61 0 million duning the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011 £134
mulion profit) Key amongst the current year balances 1s £79 5 nulhion (2011 £17 | mullion) loss on the revaluation of
the Homes Subgroup’s swaps The fair value movements are expected to conttnue creating volatitity 1n the profit figure
from year to year

The third round of the third rent review concluded in December 2011 with an average rental uplifi of 10 87%, equivalent
to an addittonal rental income of £3 8 million per annum  This represents a good result, given that the five years since
these properties were last reviewed included a sigmificant period where rents 1in general came under downward pressure
due to the increased supply of unuts and the effects of the recession

The results of the previous rent reviews are summarised 1n the following table

As at 25 December Number of units Rent receivable (£'000) Increase 1n rent receivable
per untt (%)
1996 55,054 110,985 -
2002 44,987 134,427 48 2%
2007 41,393 152,040 22 9%

10



LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Homes Subgroup (continued)
Performance (continued)

The Homes Subgroup’s sales summary (including MQE units, related assets, new build and developments)

2011/2012 2010/2011
Unuts 373 369
Sales Value £48,323K £58,532K

The Homes Subgroup’s performance reflects the 1ssues tn the wider market but the reduced levels of available stock for
sale has reduced exposure to volatlity in this area The KPIs for the Homes Subgroup, outlined earlier in this report, have
been impacied by the bulk sale of 124 units at St Eval These umits averaged £40,000 sales income each as they are of a
non-traditional construction, therefore not qual:ifying for mortgage finance The sale of these units without paying for
significant structural modifications has been a good result, but has resulted 1n the KPIs for the Homes Subgroup being
lower than previous years

In respect of sales activities a key measure 15 whether the net sales proceeds (after refurbishment costs and dilapidations
income) achieved are tn hine with the expected cash recetvable, after market movements This measure 1s expressed as a
percentage of the indexed open market value (using the blended movement 1n the Halifax and Nauonwide house price
indices as the basis for market movements) as asscssed at the ime of the acquisiton (HP1 OMV)  Achievement against
HPI OMV was down to 96% (2011 106%) in the year The long-term average achieved since January 2000 1s 97 2%
(2011 98 3%) confirming that performance closely tracks the market

The net value realised per umit (sales price net of sncentives — refurbishment costs + dilapidations) has decreased during
the current year, with the actual achieved price at £118K (2011 £151K) Tlus reflects the number of ‘low value’
properties sold during the year

Overheads continued within budget The Group completed a claim for VAT on overheads that the group belicved had
been overpaid 1n past years

The Homes Subgroup has again benefited from its ability to manage the mix of rentals and sales strategies to meet the
vaniable demand for propertics on its sites across the country On the one hand, increasing the number of properues
available for sale to meet the higher than expected demand 1n some locations but, on the other hand, maintaiming strict
control of the ‘busld programme’ where sales continued to be slow The short-term rentals strategy has again been used
for stock that 1s not ready for sale or where sales rates are slow due to the current market conditions

11




LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Homes Subgroup (continued)

Key Performance Indicators

Notwithstanding the rent recervable from the SoSD the key variable drivers for the Homes Subgroup operations are the
rate at which sales can be achieved and the net value achieved, after refurbishment costs Given the unique nature of the
Homes Subgroup’s portfolio the achtcvement of targets will be dependent upon the type of unmit, the location and the

timing of the release

The main key performance indicators considered are

KPi 2011/2012 2010/2011 Basis of calculatton
Achievement of mdexed open 95 7% 106 2% To compare the value realised on the
market value sale of a property with the value
expected 1f the property value at
acquisttion had increased in hine with the
general house price index The value
realised 1s calculated as sales income
plus dilapidations less refurbishment
costs This 1s then divided by the
origmal value, and 1ndexed using an
average of the Natonwide and Halifax
house price indices movements from
1996 to the date of sale
Time to sell
Average weeks from SoSD 82 58 From the pomnt SoSD release properties,
termination to sales release Annington’s rental income ceases It 1s,
therefore, important that APL quickly
Average wecks from sales 22 20 decides whal action 18 to be taken 1n
release to sales comple[]on order to achieve maximum value
Annington, therefore, measures the time
Average weeks from  sales 10 10 to sell a property under three separate
reservauon to sales completion headings
Net sales price per unit £130,045 £158,297 Gross sales less value of incentives
Refurbishment costs per unit net £12,000 £7.064 Amount spent on the repair,
of dilaptdations recerved refurbishment and upgrade of property
less the amount received from the SoSD
mn respect of works necessary 1o bring
the property up to good and tenantable
order
Sales and Marketing cost per (£4,233) (£4,861) Advertising and  marketing  costs
unit apportioned to each umt sold on a site
Holding costs per umit £2,030 £1,991 Costs  ancurred  1n securing  and

maintaining  a  sitefproperty  whulst
awaiting sale

There are no relevant key performance indicators set for the Developments Subgroup

12




LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Homes Subgroup (continued)

Financial Position and accounting policies

A summary of the financial position 1s included it Appendix One
The accounting policigs are stated 1in Note 1 to the accounts

The Homes Subgroup has long-term funding arranged through the secuntisation vehicles Anmngton Finance No 1 plc
(AF1) and Annington Finance No 4 plc (AF4) Both of these companies are reviewed by their respective rating agencies
as part of the 1ssuance conditions There has been no reduction n the respective ratings of classes of notes during the
year, or since year-end

During the year, AFI repaid the outstanding principal on the 2007/2011 Bonds, which amounted to £27,398K (2011
payments on this bond totalled £36,111K} Addiuonally, AF1 commenced repaying principal on the 2012/2021 Bonds,
winch amounted to £8,730K

Net cash from operauons was used to redeem £61,412K (2011 £56,160K) of AF4 B3 Floating Rate Notes and to meet
‘offseting” swap costs of £22.461K (2011 £18,966K), as required by the AF4 arrangement In total, since the 2004
refinancing, £445,930K (2011 £384,518K) of B3 Notes have beer repard, leaving an outstanding balance of £219,020K
(2011 £280,432K)

During the year, the holdback mechanism attaching 1o the Class A Zero Coupon Notes and the Class B Zero Coupon
Notes has required £10,654K (2011 £12,975K) to be placed nto the Holdback Account Of the amounts added to the
Holdback Account £10,645K (2011 £28,376K) was used to repurchase and cancel notes and the remainder 15 held
cash




LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Homes Subgroup (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Area of Potential Uncertainty

Risk / Opportunity

Strategy

Fluctuating property values and
rental levels

The property market has a history of
experiencing periods of nsing values followed
by a slowdown n growth rates and even
falling values

The Homes Subgroup 1s a long-term investor
in the residenual property market and as such
can be expected to expenence pertods of both
increasing and falling values as well as periods
of inactivity

Both caputal and rental values are of sigmficant
importance to the valuaton of the Homes
Subgroup’s interest in the MQE

The Board reviews the capnial values
and rental levels achieved, through
its activiies, and considers any
changes that have occurred to the
expected levels alongside prevailing
market condinons

Where deviations are noted, these
will be ncorporated into futurc
appraisals to ensure realisuc and
rauonal forecasting which forms the
basis for all business decisions

Fluctuaung levels in the number
of properties released by SoSD

The SoSD has absolute discretion regarding
the locauon and timing of property releases
This can have an impact on the level of
resources required to process transactions and
also on the expected income and expenditure
to be incurred Historically, there has been no
consistency to the release profile and with only
six months’ notice required before properties
are handed back, 1t clearly has an impact on
workflow 1n the Homes Subgroup

The Board recognises this and has
maintained a pohicy of keeping
internal resources at low levels All
principal activities are outsourced to
thurd parties, which can provide the
necessary skills in the right mix and
location This cnables the Homes
Subgroup to flex outsourcing to meet
1ts operational needs according to
stock levels and the prevailing
market conditions

High level of property releases

by SoSD combined with
varying housing market
conditions

If the SoSD terminated leases on a significant
number of properties over a short period of
ume during which acuvity levels in the general
housing market were low, the Homes
Subgroup could suffer a reduction 1n rent from
the SoSD at the same time, as sales were
proving difficult

Notwithstanding  current  market
conditions, the Board 1s of the view
that the long-term demand for
housing tn the UK will continue to
outstrip supply and that demand for
market renting will be stronger
during poor selling peniods, reducing
the overall impact on the Group’s
position

However, 1if the SoSD releases a
high number of properues during a
period of strong market demand,
then the Homes Subgroup would be
able to increase the amount of net
mcome gencrated lcading to earlier
redemption of the AF4 Class B3
notes Early redemption of debt
would clearly ncrease the value of
the Homes Subgroup
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LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Homes Subgroup (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Area of Potential Uncertainty

Risk / Opportumty

Strategy

Low levels of property releases
by SoSD

Under the terms of the contract, the SoSD 1s
required to release a munimum of 13,213
properties from the onginal Retained Estate
during the period to December 2021 As at 31
March 2012, SoSD had released 15,084
properties, effectively fulfilling this obligation
Consequently, SoSD need not release any
further properties to the Homes Subgroup

At the ume of the refinancing
February 2002, the possibility of no
further releases beyond the 13,213
figure was contemplated  To
mutigate the effect of thas the Homes
Subgroup, through 1ts subsidiary
AF4, pad a fee to the swap
counterparties 1 return for reduced
payment obligations for the perod
January 2008 to April 2013 After
this time, 1t 15 expected SoSD rent
will be sufficient to cover all debt
service liabilittes to 2021, without
the need for sales income

Fluctuating interest rates

The Homes Subgroup has entered into long-
term funding arrangements to fit with the long-
term investment strategy

To counter the long-term exposure to
fluctuating interest rates the Homes
Subgroup, through s subsidiaries,
has effectively fixed interest rates
through to 2023 by 1ssuing a mux of
zero coupon notes, fixed interest
notes and floating nterest rate notes
which are matched by 1nterest rate
swaps

Late receipt of rent from SoSD

The terms of the underleases require the SoSD
1o pay rent to the Homes Subgroup on a
quarterly basis  Interest payments on the
Homes Subgroup’s debt are also due quarterly
However, in the unlikely event that the SoSD
1s late n paying its rent or otherwise market
interruption causes the rent not to be received,
then there 1s a nisk that the Homes Subgroup

The Homes Subgroup has entered
mto three liqudity facilities to
provide cover for

AF1 - £17 3 mullion

AF4 Class B3 and Class M notes -
£43 5 mlhon

AF4 Class C notes - £75 0 mullion

would not be able to meets 1ts debt service
obligations

Outlook

The subdued market conditions expenienced durmng the year are forecast to continue throughout the next financial year
and perhaps beyond The cautious optimism expressed this time last year that house prices may recover duning 2012/13
faltered but there 1s still optimism for a recovery 1n the short to medium term Future sales are expected to continue at
low volumes during the next 12 months with HPI remaining flat despite monthly variances, as witnessed this year The
business will again seek to adopt a flexible approach to renting or selling umits 1n response to market needs

Any optumism that 2012/13 mught bring an unproved econommic outlook 1s unfounded Average prices are likely to remain
flat but ssgmficant regional variations will remain with London and the South East better placed for recovery than other
parts of the country Mortgage availability wiil remain constrained and the construction and house-bmlding sector wall
struggle to show any signs of a meamingful recovery to reduce the ongoing imbalance between supply and demand None
of the Government’s mitiatives designed to sumulate the housing market will have any noticeable impact and the supply
and demand imhalance 1n housing will persist
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LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Homes Subgroup (continued)

QOutlook (continued)

Our sales team have noticed that there are an increasing number of downsizers making purchases 1n the market This has
been particularly evident at our Rowner site, where a high percentage of customers are retired and looking to buy
maisoneties after selling their larger houses Thes plays to the Group’s strengths of providing predomunantly 2/3 bedroom
dwellings at affordable values

The difficulties 1n buying and selling property are sttll generating strong upsides for landlords 1n the rental market There
15 an expectation that the strength of the UK rental market will continue for as long as there 15 a lack of availabaluy of
mortgages Fears that young people will find the housing market unaffordable have increased and there 1s talk of a
‘generation of renters’

The Homes Subgroup 1s renting a number of properties and, over the short term, consideraion will be made of the best
way te capitalise on opportunities 1n this area Currently, a strategy of shorni-term rental whilst waiung for a clear upturn
in the sales market has been assessed as the best strategy for umits on several sites This strategy 1s considered for all
releases from the Retained Estate

The number of properties being released by the SoSD has continued at low levels, leading to reduced stock available for
sale Given that a number of strategic reviews into the operations of the MoD are ongoing, 1t will be some time before
any clear direction 1s evident and we do not anticipate any significant change 1o these levels for a couple of years
Thereafter cost saving measures are expected to be implemented under this plan and, 1o turn, are expected to lead o0
increased releases 1n the medium-term

In considering future workloads, the Board recognises that the deciston regarding the future rate of property releases rests
entirely with the SoSD and, when reviewing employee resourcing, the Board considers the possibility for fluctuating
acuvity levels and market conditions The Board does not expect to make any significant changes to the current resource
levels

Following another year in which the market has not significantly changed, 1t remains a realistic expectation that the
market will remain depressed 1n terms of sales opportumities but will be buoyant from a landlord’s perspective, in the
near term All the factors of the last couple of years remain, with a lack of mortgage availability, reduced demand and a
lack of consumer confidence all serving to mawntain downward pressure on prices

ANNINGTON RENTALS (HOLDINGS) LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES (RENTALS SUBGROUP)

The Rentals Subgroup was established in 1999 with the purpose of creating a series of residential 1nvestment portfolios,
free of the constraints and conditions governing the Homes Subgroup portfoho

Objectives and Strategy

The objecuves and strategy for the Rentals Subgroup 15 detailed at Appendix Two

Financing

A summary of the Rentals Subgroup financing arrangements 1s contained within Appendix Two

Operations

As at 31 March 2012, the Rentals Subgroup conirolled 1,614 (2011 1,569) properues Durning the current year,
operations have expanded through acquisiions in Anmington Rentals (No 7) Limited of an additonal 26 units and
through the transfer of 10 umits from APL to Anninglon Rentals (No 2) Limited

During the year, a redevelopment of 84 units at Uxbridge owned by Annington Rentals (No 4) Limited was undertaken
A development scheme with a national house builder to add an additional 24 units and refurbish the 1mtial 84 was
assessed as providing the best return for the group The programme 1s now complete, with sales up to 31 March of 98
properties (2011 ml} Ths resulted in turnover of £19 654K (2011 £ml) and gross profit of £558K (2011 £mil)
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LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Rentals Subgroup (continued)

Operations (continued)

The Rentals Subgroup continues to operate a mixed portfolio of rental units on Assured Short-hold Tenancies (AST) and
bulk leases Bulk leasing io the SoSD 1s continuing to expand where opportumtes anse for the group to provide
properties on 10-year leases in areas of high demand

Performance

The Rentals Subgroup again has scen low numbers of void properties and costs maintained below forecast (see KPls
below) Gross rents have increased to £15,108K (2011 £14,625K), primanly through the acqusition of a further 123
properties in 2011 by Anmngton Rentals (No 6) Limited (AR6) and an addwional 26 properties 1n 2012 1n Annmington
Rentals (No 7) Limuted {ART), all are now let to the SoSD on ten-year lcases Rents have continued to be monitored and
maintained at market levels on ASTs Bulk lettings to the SoSD (representing over one half of the properties) are at fixed
rental values for the first five years of the lease

During the year, mine property disposals were made by Annington Rentals (No 2) Limeted (2011 12) This resulted 1n a
turnover of £1,466K (2011 £2,071K) and gross profit of £48K (2011 £114K) Sales made by Annington Rentals (No 4)
Limited are noted above 1n the Operations section Sale proceeds have been used to reduce the group’s borrowings,
including a total of £10,900K which was released to RBS to pay down debt (2011 £7,100K)

Key Performance Indicators

KPI 201172012 2010/2011 Basis of calculation
To manage costs within pre- -529% -4 06% To compare actual expenditure
defined targets levels against predetermined

forecasts, to ensure adequate control
over expenditure exists The KPI s
measured as a percentage +/- trom

forecast
To maintain void levels below 077% 1 26% To measure the amount of potenual
50% rent lost amsing from properties

being void as a percentage of total
potential rent

Financial position and accounting policies
The financial position 1s summarised 1n Appendix Two
The accounting policies are stated in Note | to the accounts

The Rentals Subgroup has entered into funding arrangements consistent with a residental investment portfoho with
medium-term 1nvestment time horizons As the portfolio grows, further funding will be sought commensurate with the
growth prospects

The property portfolios are revalued every year Each of the subsidiary company portfolios has been divided into five
relatively even tranches Each tranche ts broadly representative of the others in respect of geographical spread Each
tranche will be valued 1n sequence, by an external valuer, over a five-year cycle The annual percentage adjustment in
respect of the tranche externally valued 1n any particular year will be applied to the remaining four tranches not so
valued, in order that a current valuation for the whole portfolio can be expressed 1n these accounts

During the year, the market for this type of property (typically family homes) continued to be variable, with some regions
faring better than others The annual valvatton saw a sltght increase 1n overall values and no 1ssues are expected
regarding the loan to value covenants in euther of the external funding arrangements




LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Rentals Subgroup (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Area of Potential Uncertainty

Risk / Opportumty

Strategy

Fluctuatmg interest rates

The Rentals Subgroup has entered into
medium-term funding arrangements to
fit with the medium-term investment
strategy

To counter the medium-term exposure to
flucluaung nterest rates, the Rentals
Subgroup has fixed interest rates through
to July 2014 by entering into facihities at a
floaung 1nterest rate and simultaneously
entering 1nto interest rate swaps to fix the
interest liability

Changing demand for private
residential rental property

A number of Rental Subgroup
subsidianes let residential property using
assured shorthold tenancies There 15 a
nsk of changing demand, which could
cffect either or both void and rental
levels

Management constantly reviews
propertics, which may become void 1n the
short-term and decide what rental levels
should be achieved on re-letung Should
it become uneconomic (o retain such
properiies then  options, including
potenual refurbishment and/or disposal,
are considered

Changing demand for bulk
residential rental properties

Annington Rentals (No4) Limied,
Annington Rentals (No 6) Limited and
Annington Rentals (No 7) Limted let
blocks of properties 1o ‘corporate’
orgamsattons If the demand reduces
then the relevant rental company could
have a significant number of void units
1o deal with

Annington Rentals (No 4) Limited lets
blocks of property for periods of 3 — 5
years In-house staff maintain regular
contact with the ‘tenant orgamisation’ in
order that any potential lease terminations
are noted as early as possible, in order to
facilitate tuimely consideration of options
to re-let, refurtish and / or sell

With regards Anninglon Rentals (No 6)
Limited and Anmngton Rentals (No 7)
Limited lettings, each property 1s let on
an individuat lease for 10 years with a 5-
year break Again regular contact 1s
maimained with the ‘tenant orgamsatton’
to momitor demand and changing
requirements

Outlook

Annmington Renials has plans in place to continue its nvestment programme These plans focus on the recently
incorporated AR7, which will invest mamly in new build properues External funding has been obtamned to finance this

expansion

The programme of reviewing stock held within the Rentals subsidiaries conuinues on a rolling basis Where properties are
tdentified by management as being surplus to future requirements, they will be considered for sale and the funds raised
used to reduce the group’s borrowings
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LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

ANNINGTON DEVELOPMENTS (HOLDINGS) LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES (DEVELOPMENTS
SUBGROUP)

Details of the Developments Subgroup interests, objectives and strategy, and financing are shown at Appendix Three

Operations

The Developments Subgroup team has continued to provide planning advice to the wider Group and has assisted 1n ad
hoc projects within the portfolio  The Developments team continue to be involved with managing the Developments
Subgroup’s interest 1n the joint venture companies, Countryside Anmington (Colchester) Limited and Countryside
Annington (Mill Hill) Limited These two companies have slowed buld programmes during the year to match
construction activity to forecast sales

Annington (DA) Investment Limited has an undrawn commitment to provide €44 7 million further investment nto
Deutsche Annington Immobilten GmbH via a Terra Firma Capital Partners Fund  These commutted but undrawn funds
are hetd by Annington Homes Limited (AHL) 1n Euros Therefore, any exchange rate gains or losses will fall within the
Homes Subgroup

Performance

Against the backdrop of reduced development opportunities and planning activity due to the lack of releases from the
SoSD, the Developments Subgroup had a very satisfactory year The two joint venture developments at Colchester and
Mill Hill have been managed well and within budget, meeting all objectives The financial situauon at Colchester has
strengthened to enable the shareholder loan to be pard down and at Mill Hill, the external bank loan was repaid during the
year Cash at bank within each joint venture will be used to fund the remarning development works

At Mill Hill, sales progress has been impressive with £17,635K of sales n the year to March 2012 (2011 £14,223K)
generated from the sales of 42 pnivate homes (2011 25) At Colchester, sales progress has ssmularly been wnpressive
with £4,203K of sales in the year to March 2012 (2011 £4,870K) generated from the sales of 23 private homes (2011
22)

Financial Position and Accounting Policies
The financial position 1s summansed 1n Appendix Three

The accounting policies are stated 1n Note 1 to the accounts

Principal Risks and Uncertainties:

Area of Potential Uncertainty

Risk / Opportunity

Strategy

The Developments Subgroup
residenuial development
projects are exposed to the
current and future demand for
new housing

As with all new-build developments, the
goal 15 to dehver the nght product to
market at the right ime

Regular management meetings consider
changes to requirements and pricing
before commutting to further avoidable
costs This has resulted 1n slowing down
development 1f 1t appears that completed
stock will outstrip demand

The Developments Subgroup,
through 1ts joint ventures, has
entered nto spectfic project
financing

These facilutes have specific covenants
in relation to loan to value, cost overruns
and completed stock units

Regular jomnt venture management
meetngs consider changes (¥}
requirements and  pricing  before
commitung to further avoidable costs
This has resulted n slowing down
development 1f it appears that completed
stock will outstnp demand
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LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Developments Subgroup (continued)
Outlook

With the continued low level of releases from the SoSD, the Developments Subgroup will continue to pursue planming
permissions to create added value from the Homes Subgroup sites avaitable Exisung developmenis, including the joint
ventures al Colchester and Mill Hill, will be progressed 1o orderly conclusions with the objecuive to at least maintain the
profits realised so far Work will continue 1o following through and developing as much value as possible from the
ICLLP entered into by APL for the joint development of Millbrook Park An opportunity has been 1dennfied to possibly
develop a parcel of land 1n Whetstone Preliminary feasibibity studies and exploratory discussions with planners are
currently being undertaken
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Le Grand Anmungton Limited for the year ended 31 March 2012 which
comprise the consohidated profit and loss account, the consolhidated statement of total recogmsed gans and losses,
the consolidated note of historical cost profit and losses, the consolidated and parent company balance sheets, the
consolidated cash flow statement and the related notes 1 to 35 The financial reporting framework that has been
applhied 1n their preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permutted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directers are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility
15 to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements n accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the aundit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaimng evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error  This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the rcasonableness of sigmficant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we
read all the financial and non-financial information n the annual report to 1dentify material inconsistencies with the
andited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report

Opimon on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 2012
and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended,

. have been properly prepared 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us 1o report to
you if, 1n our opimon

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audn
have not been received from branches not visited by us, or
the parent company financial statcments are not 1n agreement with the accountng records and returns, or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration spectfied by law are not made, or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Q@&ww

Claire Faulkner (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statuiory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

8 March 2013
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LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Year ended 31 March 2012

Note

TURNOVER

Group income and share of joint venture’s
turnover

Less share of jomnt venture’s turnover

GROUP TURNOYER 2
Cost of sales
GROSS PROFIT

Administration expenses
Other operating income

OPERATING PROFIT 3

Share of operating profit in joint ventures
Profit on disposal of properties 5
Amounts written off investments 13

PROFIT BEFORE FINANCE CHARGES
AND TAXATION

=

Interest receivable and simular income
Interest payable and similar charges 7

LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
BEFORE TAXATION

Tax (charge)/credit on loss on ordinary 8
acuvities

LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
AFTER TAXATION

Minority interest 26

PROFIT/LOSS) FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR

All activities derive from continuing operations

2012 2011
£2000 £2000
186,563 181,052
(10,920 (9,546)
175,643 171,506
(10,432)  (12,804)
165,211 158,702
(18474)  (17,126)
137 6
146,874 141,582
1,098 647
13,722 13,270
(34,475) .
127,219 155,499
6,561 7,562
(227,185)  (167,990)
(93,405) (4,929)
(1,351) 3,191
(94,756) (1,738)
192,013 (28,624)
97,257 (30,362)
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LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

Year ended 31 March 2012

2011
£000

(30,362)
(121)
6,958

2012

Note £000

Profit/(loss) for the financial year 25 97,257
Exchange differences (425)
Unrealised surplus on revaluation of properties 8,850
Total recogmsed gains and losses tor the financial year 105,682

(23,525)

CONSOLIDATED NOTE OF HISTORICAL COST PROFITS AND LOSSES
Year ended 31 March 2012

2011
£°000

(4,929
23,736

18,807

2012
£2000
Reported loss before taxation for the financial year (93,405)
Realisation of property revaluation gains of previous years 26,575
Historical cost (loss)/profit on ordinary activities before taxation (66,830)
Historical cost profit/{loss) for the year retained atter taxation and minority
Interests 102,691

(29,120)
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LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
31 March 2012

Note
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 10
Investment properties 10
INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES 12
Share of gross assets
Share of gross hailimes
Share of net assets
Loans
OTHER INVESTMENTS 13
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors
Due within one year 14
Due after one year 14
Cash at bank and n hand 15
Short-term deposits
CREDITORS: amounts falling due
within one year 16
NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES
CREDITORS: amounts falling due
after more than one year 17
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 18
NET ASSETS
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 23
Revaluation reserve 24
Profit and loss account 24
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS/(DEFICIT) 25
MINORITY INTEREST 26

TOTAL CAPITAL EMPLOYED

2012 2011
£°000 £000
42 80

4,530,066 3,807,557

4,530,108 3,807,637

17,926 22,388
(12,562)  (18,231)
5,364 4,157
6,052 9,584
11,416 13,741
126,927 162,304

4,668,451 3,983,682

3,101 2,191

- 222
101,962 141,433
37,029 -

142,092 143,346

(114,743) (99,072}

27,349 44,774

4,695,800 4,028,456

(2,459,888) (2,456,354)

(27,001) (25,970)

2,208,911 1,546,132

11,901 8,484
7,626 (94,639)

19,527 (86,135)

2,189,334 1,632,287

2,208,911 1,546,132

The financial statements of Le Grand Annington Limuted, registered number 3591675, were approved by the Board

of Directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 8 March 2013

Signed on behaif of the Board of Directors
7B ow s

C Barnes
Director
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LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
31 March 20112

FIXED ASSETS
Investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors Due after one year
Cash at bank and n hand

CREDITORS: amounts falling due
within one year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

CREDITORS: amounts falling due
after more than one year

NET LIABILITIES

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital
Revaluation reserve

Profit and loss account

SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT

Note

14

16

23
24
24

25

2012
£7000

2011
£°000

The financial statements of Le Grand Annington Limited, registered number 3591675, were approved by the Board

of Directors and authonsed for issue on 8 March 2013

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

LI Bon s

C Barnes
Director
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LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
Note £000 £7000
Net cash inflow from operating activities 27 156,361 155,649
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest recerved 3,685 3,252
Davidends from fixed assets investments 841 860
Interest paid (78,930) (87,120)
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and
servicing of finance (74,404) (83,008)
Taxation 916 1,977
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Sales of properties 65,202 55,355
Purchase of tangible assets 10 (11,987) (16,849)
Purchase of short term investments (37,029} -
Purchase of listed investments - (783)
Disposal of histed investments - 16,196
Investment 1n joint venture (896) -
Purchase of other investments 13 (38} (8,270)
Net cash inflow from capital expenditure and financial
investment 15,252 45,649
Acquisitions and disposals
Loans to joint ventures 12 (574) -
Loans repawd from joint ventures 12 4,106 450
Net cash inflow from acquisitions and disposals 3,532 450
Net cash inflow before financing 101,657 120,717
Financing
Increase 1n borrowings 45,000 15,963
Repayment of borrowings (161,461) (120,742)
Purchase of offsetting swaps (22,460) (18,966)
Net cash outflow from financing 28 (138,921) (123,745)
Decrease in cash 28 (37,264) (3,028)
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LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2012

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies are summarised below They have been applied consistently throughout
the year and preceding year

Accounting convention

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revalvation of
certain tangible fixed assets and irvestments, and in accordance with applicable Umted Kingdom accounting
standards

Going concern

Following a senes of transactions in December 2012, described i more detail at note 35, Anningten
Holdings ple, the direct subsidiary of Le Grand Annington Limuted disposed of 1ts interests in the remainder
of the group Following this transaction, the ability of Le Grand Anmington Limited to continue as a going 1s
based on the hqudnty of the new group The directors have assessed the available hquid assets and the
forecast cash flows of Annington Holdings plc and the Company

After making enquines, the directors have a rcasonable expectatton that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and accounts

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consohdate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary
undertakings for the year ended 31 March 2012  The results of the subsidiaries acquired or sold are
consolidated for the period from or on the date on which control passed Acquisitions are accounted for
under the acquisition method

In accordance with FRS 9, ‘Associate and Joint Ventures’, joint ventures are included in the Group Financial
Statements under the gross cquity method of accounting

The share warrants 1ssued by Annmgton Homes Limited (note 11) are treated as exercised when determining
minority interests (note 26)

Turnover

Gross rent under all leases 15 accounted for on a strarght-line basis over the lease term Rent increases
ansing from rent reviews are taken nto account when such reviews have been settled with the tenants

Investment properties

Investment properties are revalued annually on a portfolio basis such that individual property calculauons are
not performed The aggregate surpluses or deficits on the portfolio of properties are transferred to the
investment revaluation reserve, except that a deficit which 1s expected to be permanent and which 15 1n
excess of any previously recogmised surplus over cost relating to the same property, or the reversal of such a
deficit, 15 charged (or credited) to the profit and loss account Depreciatuon 1s not provided n respect of
freehold investment properties, or 1n respect of leasehold investment properties where the unexpired term of
the lease 15 more than 20 years The directors consider that this accounting policy, which represents a
departure from the Companies Act, 1s necessary to provide a true and fair view as required under SSAP 19
‘Accounting for investment properties’ The financial effect of the departure from the Companies Act
cannot reasonably be quanufied as deprectauon 15 only one of the many factors reflected in the annual
valuation and the amount which muight otherwise have been shown cannot be separately wdentified or
quantified

Disposals are accounted for on a legal completion of contract basis Direct costs (including amounts payable
under the Profit Share Agreement) of the sale are offset against the profitfloss on sale  Other costs arc dealt
with 1n operaung expenses

The nct book value of investment properties 1s shown net of disposal costs, as determined 1n accordance with
the Profit Share Agreement, which the Company would have incurred had the assets been disposed of at the
balance sheet date The Profit Share Agreement ended on 5 November 2011, hence no such adjustment 1s
required at 31 March 2012
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1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Dilapidations

Dhdapidation receipts are credited to refurbishment works and are only recognised when the clarms have been
agreed Income in respect of claims recognised 1s deferred to the extent that the works are incomplete

Profit share

All MQE property disposals untl 5 November 2011 were subject to a Profit Share Agreement based on the
principles of the Taxauon of Chargeable Gains Act 1992 This Agreement was stgned with the SoSD on 5
November 1996 The applicable Profit Share percentage becomes payable on the date of legal exchange for
property disposals (note 5)

Foreign currency translation

Assets and habilities 1n foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date Transactions i foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction Exchange differences are taken into account 1n arriving at the operating
profit

The balances on foreign currency loans are transiated at the rates of exchange ruling at the pertod end and the
unreahsed exchange differences are dealt with 1n the profit and loss account, as are the realised exchange
differences artsing on repayments of foreign currency loan during the period

Taxation

Current tax ts provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively cnacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s provided in full on timing differences, which result 1n an obligation at the balance sheet date
to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallise
based on current tax rates and law Timing differences anse from the inclusion of items of income and
expendiiure 1n taxation computations n periods different from those in which they are included n financial
statements

Deferred tax 1s not provided on ttming differences arising from the revaluation of fixed assets where there 1s
no binding contract to dispose of these assets Deferred tax assets are recogmised to the extent that 1t 15
regarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered Deferred tax assets and habiliies are not
discounted

Depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost net of depreciation and any provision for impairment Depreciation 1s
provided on all tangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight line
basis over its esimated useful hife, as follows

Plant, equipment and vehicles 3 years

Leases

Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account as mcurred
Borrowings

Borrowings are imtially recogmised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
1ssue of the financial hiability Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost, whereby finance costs,
which compnise 1nterest, discounts and 1ssue costs, are allocated over the period of the borrowing to achieve
a constant rate on the carrying amount Borrowing costs are shown net of receipts or payments from various
swap arrangements (note 20}

Assets in the course of construction

Assets 1n the course of construction are stated at cost  All costs directly assoclated with the purchase and
construction of these assets are capitalised When the assets are completed, they are reclassified as
mvestment propertres
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Pension costs

The cost of providing contributions to employees’ personal defined contribution schemes 1s charged to the
profit and loss account as contributions are made Differences between contributions payable 1n the year and
contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments 1n the balance sheet

Derivative financial mstruments

The Group uses dernivative financial instruments to reduce exposure to interest ratc movements The
Company does not hold or 1ssue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes

The Group’s denvative financial instruments are not designated as hedging instruments and are held on the
balance sheet at fair value Changes 1a the fair value are recogmised n the profit and loss account as they
arise  Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows esttmated and discounted
based on the applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates

Investments in subsidiary undertakings

The Company’s investments 1n the shares of the subsidiary undertakings are stated at net asset value at 31
March 2012 and after reflecung warrants held by Nomura Investments (AH) Limuted which has the effect of
restricting the value that could be attributed to Annington Holdings ple  This includes, where applicable, the
professional valuation of properties Surpluses and deficits arising from changes 1n net asset value are taken
to the revaluation reserve

Other investments

Investments in fixed asset investments are shown at cost less provision for impairment
Listed investments

Investments are carnied at farr value with changes in fair value recogmised directly 1n equity
Fmancial instruments

Investments are recogmised and derecognmised on a trade date and are imitially measured at fair value, plus
transaction costs Financial habilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into

Trade receivables

Trade receivables that have fixed or determunable payments are mmitially measured at fair value,
subsequently measured at amortised cost and discounted to reflect the ume value of money

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes 1n value

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through the Profit and Loss account, are assessed for
mdicators of impairment at each balance sheet date Financial assets are impaired where there 18 objective
cvidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the imtial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have beer impacted This recogmsed impairment wall
be taken to the Profit and Loss account

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group generates substantially all of its turnover, profits before taxation and net assets from property
investment 1n England and Wales
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i OPERATING PROFIT

2012 2011
£000 £000
Operating profit is after charging:
Operating lease payments
Plant and machinery 216 207
Buildings 565 595
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 47 39
Impairment losses on invesiment properties 9 83
Write-back of impairment losses on investment properties (852)

Auditor’s remuneration
Fees payable 1o the Company’s auditor for the audit of the
Company’s annual accounts
- the audit of the Company 5 17
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and their associates for
other services to the Group

- the audit of the Group 246 352
- the audit of Profit Share 27 25
Total audit fec 278 394

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for other services
- all other services to the Company - 1
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and their associates for
other services to the Group

- tax services to the Group 331 342
- all other services to the Group 415 4
Total non-audit fee 746 347

Included 1n the 2011 year auditor’s remuneration are amounts relating to the 2010 audit of £5,000 for the
Company and £125,000 in relation to all other members of the Group

4. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

No director of the Company recerved emoluments for qualifying services to the Company duning the current
Or previous year




LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2012

4. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES (contmued)

2012 2011
No No

Average number of persons employed (including directors)
Admnmistrative 25 25
Operations 23 24
48 49
Staff costs incurred during the year in respect of these 2012 2011
employees were: £°000 £000
Wages and salaries including directors’ emoluments 11,907 11,469
Social security costs 487 437
Other pension costs (note 31) 475 484
12,869 12,390

The Company has no employees All staff are employed by the subsidiary, Anmngton Management Limited
on behalf of the Group

Long term incentive plan

Wages and salanes include an accrual for the future potential payments of the discretionary Long Term
Incentive Plans (LTIPs) The current scheme (LTIP3) has been established for the period 1 April 2007 to 31
March 2012 The first payment was made 1n Apnil 2012 with further instalments potentially payable over the
following two years The accrual 1s based on a multiple of the discretionary annual performance bonus
awarded for the year ended 31 March 2012

5. PROFIT ON DISPOSAL OF PROPERTIES
2012 2011
£000 £2000
Sales proceeds 72,715 62,600
Selling costs (3,356) (1,762)
Payment under Profit Share Agreement (1,621) (3,782)
Sale of properties 67,738 57,146
Cost of sales (54,016) (43,876)
13,722 13,270

The disposal of umts anses from a mix of released umts, related assets and new butld opportunuties from the
orniginal MQE portfolio acquired by Anmington Property Limited and properties sold from the Rentals
Subgroup, both being wholly-owned subsidiares (refer to the Business Review)} During the year disposals
of 485 units (2011 381 units) were completed

32




LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2012

6. INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

2012 2011

£000 £7000

Interest receivable 3,323 2,192
Surplus on bonds redeemed 155 1,142
Dividends 841 887
Fair value wnic up on interest rate swaps 2,225 3,262
Unrealised foreign exchange gains on loans 17 79
6.561 7,562

7. INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES

2012 2011

£000 £°000

Interest payable on secured floating and fixed rate notes 57,016 62,019
Amortisation of discount and 1ssue costs 77,590 74,148
Interest payable on bank loans 7,244 7,276
Interest ansing on habilities held at amortised cost 141,850 143,443
Other ftnance charges 976 894
Fair value write down on interest rate swaps 79,469 17,115
Loss on bonds redeemed 1,951 5,034
Swap break costs 278 455
Foreign exchange loss on foreign currency deposits 2,188 213

226,712 167,154
Share of joint venture interest payable 473 836

227,185 167,990

8. TAX ON LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

2012 2011
£°000 £7000
Current tax
United Kingdom corporation tax at 26% (2011 - 28%) - -
Foreign tax 1,230 187
Share of joint ventures’ tax 439 315
Consideration recerved for tax losses surrendered (324)
Total current tax 1,345 502
Adjustments in respect of prior years
United Kingdom corporation tax at 26% (2011 - 28%) - -
Deferred tax
Profits taxable in the future under the Securitisauon Regime at 24%
(2011 - 26%) (note 19) 6 (3,791)
Share of jotnt ventures’ tax - 98
6 (3,693)
Total tax on loss on ordinary activities 1,351 (3,191)
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8. TAX ON LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIEVITIES (continued)

The standard rate of current tax for the year, based on the UK standard rate of corporation tax s 26% (2011 -
28%) The current tax charge for the vear and the previous year differs from the standard tax rate for the
reasons set out 1n the following reconcilhiation

2012 2011
£°000 £000
Loss on ordinary activities before tax (93.405) (4,929)
Tax on loss on ordinary acuvities at standard rate (24,285) (1,380)
Factors affecting credut for the year
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 30,758 911
Short-term timing differences (1,980) (2,031)
Creation of 1ax losses 10,268 2,714
Non-taxable income (24,570) (4,582)
Taxable profit on disposal of assets 1n excess of accounting profit (3,137) 4,903
Taxable income from investment in limited partnership 988 901
Capital allowances 1n excess of depreciation (9) (32)
Deferred profits taxed under securitisation regime 12,243 (1,016)
Share of joint venture’s adjustments 9 114
Foreign tax paid 1,078 -
Total actual amount of current tax 1,345 502

The amount of tax losses carried forward at 31 March 2012 1s approximately £129 2 mulhion (2011 £1329
mulhion)

The historical cost of the Group’s properties 1s £1,469 1 million (2011  £1,4732 milhon) The tax which
would be payable on the surplus ansing on the revaluation of fixed assets 1n the event of their sale at such
valuation, 15 approximately £734 6 mullion (2011 £606 9 million) A deferred tax hability has not been
recognised 1n respect of this adjustment as there 1s insufficient evidence that the liability will become due

A deferred tax asset has not been recogmsed 1n respect of tming differences relating to the long term
incentive plan, or in respect of losses carried forward, as there 1s insufficient evidence that the asset will be
recovered The amount of the asset not recogmsed 1s £39 2 mullion (2011 £41 4 million)

2012 2011

£000 £°000

LTIP provision 8,266 6,833
Losses carried forward 31,020 34,558

39,286 41,391

In Apnl 2012, the headline rate of corporation tax reduces from 26% to 24%, with further 1% reductions
expected each year until a rate of 22% 1s n place from April 2014, as declared 1n the 2012 Budget
Announcement

9. PROFIT FOR THE COMPANY

As permitted by Section 408 of the Compantes Act 2006, no separate profit and loss account 1s presented for
Le Grand Anmington Limited The result of the company was £nil for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011 -
£mb)

34




LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 March 2012

10. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

GROUP Plant,
Investment  equipment
properties and vehicles Total
£000 £7000 £000
Cost or valuation
ALl Apnl 2011 3,807,557 1,005 3,808,562
Additions — captal expenditure 11,978 9 11,987
Disposals (52,423) - (52,423)
Revaluation 762,111 - 762,111
Asselts writen-off - (81) (81)
Impairment ) - (9}
Impairment recovery 852 - 852
At 31 March 2012 4,530,066 933 4,530,999
Accumulated depreciation
At | April 2011 - 925 925
Charge for the year - 47 47
Assets wrnitten-off - (81) 81)
At 31 March 2012 - 891 891
Net book value
At 31 March 2012 4,530,066 42 4,530,108
At 31 March 2011 3,807,557 80 3,807,637
2012 2011
The main headline analysis for the portfolio is: £°000 £000
Market value 4,530,066 3,995,479
Disposal costs (calculated 1n accordance with the profit share arrangement) - (187,922)
Net book value 4,530,066 3,807,557
2012 2011
The net book amount of properties comprises £°000 £000
Freehold 324,530 343,134
Long leaseholds 16,536 16,293
Very long leaseholds (over 900 years) 4,189,000 3,448,130

4,530,066 3,807,557

2012 2011
Properties stated on a lustorical cost basis £000 £°000
Cost 2,105,600 2,127,377
Net book amount 2,105,600 2,127,377
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10.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (continued)

Homes Subgroup

Allsop LLP (‘Allsop’) has prepared a Market Valuation of the freehold and leasehold investment properties
held by Annington Property Limited, for the purpose of the Group’s financial statements The Market Value
as at 31 March 2012 was £4,280 8 milhon (2011 £3,745 8 mallion) and the valuer’s opimion was derived on
a portfolto basis, primarily using comparable recent market transacuons on arm’s kength terms The valuation
was catried out by an external valuer 1n accordance with the requirements of the RICS Valuauon Standards
(sixth edition, as subsequently amended), except where 1t 1s not, in practical terms, feasible to comply due to
the large number of properties involved

This 1s a ‘Regulated Purpose Valuahon' Allsop has provided strategic advice and agency services to
Anntngton Property Lirmited since 1997 and has provided annual valuations of the portfolio since 1999
Allsop have confirmed that in relation to theiwr most recent financial year, the proportion of therr total fee
income arising from Annington Property Limited was less than 5% which may be regarded as minimal
Allsop has been the valuer of these properties since 1999

Rentals Subgroup

The market value of the properties held by the wholly owned subsidianes of Annington Rentals (Holdings)
Limited was £249 1 mullion (2011 £249 4 pullion) These investment properties have been valued by the
directors on the basis of market value

The directors have considered the valuation of the properties as at 31 March 2012, with reference to an
external valuation performed by Allsop LLP The valuer was 1nstructed to value a representative sample of
approximately 20% with the intention that the whole portfolio 15 valued on a rolling basis every five years
The valuer was instructed (o value such properties by way of external inspections and 1n accordance with the
requirements of the RICS Valuation Standards The valuation was then extrapolated internally using a
desktop financial model, to provide the directors’ opimion of the Market Value

Developments Subgroup

Allsop LLP has prepared a valuation of the investment properties at 31 March 2012 This was undertaken on
the basis of Market Value Assets 1n the course of construction have been shown at cost

The Group

The revaluation surplus for the year 1s mainly attnbutable to the munomty interest and 1s shown 1n the
munority interest reconcihation 1n note 26, apart from the Group's share which 1s shown n the reconcihation
of movements 1n shareholders' funds at note 25 and the statement of total recognised gains and losses
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11.

INVESTMENT IN GROUP UNDERTAKINGS

COMPANY £0060

Value
At | Apnl 2011 and 31 March 2012 -

The histoncal cost of the investment in Annington Holdings plc was £1 (2011 £1)

Le Grand Anmington Limited owns 52% of Anmngton Holdings plc  The principal undertakings of
Annington Holdings ple at 31 March 2012, all of which are wholly owned, with the exception of Annington
Investments GmbH which 15 50 2% owned and included in the consolidated financial statements, are shown
below

Country of
Name of subsidiary undertakings incorporation Principal activity
Great Britain
Great Britain

Annington Holdings plc*
Annington Homes Limited

Intermediate group holding company
Intermediate group holding company

Annington Property Limuted
Annington Management Limited
Anniagton Receivables Limited
Annington Finance No 1 ple
Annington Finance No 4 ple

Annington Developments (Holdings) Limited

Annington Developments Lumited
Annington Reserve Limited
Annington {DA) Investment Limuted
Annington Rentals (Holdings) Linuted

Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Britain

Property 1nvestment

Management

Income management

Finance

Finance

Intermedrate group holding company
Property investment

Intermed:ate group holding company
Property investment

Intermediate group holding company

Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Britain

Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment
Property investment

Annington Rentals Limited
Annington Rentals (No 2) Limited
Annington Rentals (No 3) Limited
Annington Rentals (No 4) Limited
Annington Rentals (No 5) Limited
Annington Rentals (No 6) Linuted
Annington Rentals (No 7} Limited
Annington Rentals Management Limited Great Britain Property management

Anmngton Investments GmbH Germany Intermediate group holding company
*The shares in Annington Holdings ple are directly owned by the Company

As permitted by Section 410 (1) of the Companies Act 2006, particulars of other subsidiary undertakings are
not shown above A complete list of group undertakings will, however, be filed with the Annual Return

Annington Homes Limuted has 1ssued 75,636 warrants ailotted and fully paid amounung to £7,563,600 to
Nomura Investments (AH) Limited  The terms of the warrants were varied on 28 February 2002, increasing
the exercise price from £6,478 per warrant to £19,606 If the warrants are not exercised before 1 January
2015 the exercise price will increase to £21,666

These warrants are exercisable at any ume and Nomura Investments (AH) Limuted has no other nghts to take
up shares 1n Anmington Homes Limited

The eventual date on which the warrants may be exercised 15 currently not determined and consequently no
value has been attnbuted to these warrants 1n the balance sheet other than the onginal subscription monies
paid 1in 1996
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12.

13.

INVESTMENT IN JOINT YENTURES

Anmngton Developments Limited helds all the Group’s joint venture investments as from the following
dates

22 July 2004 Annington Wates (Cove) Limited
17 March 2005 Countryside Anmington (Colchester) Lirited
8 December 2006 Countryside Annington (Mill Hill) Limated

The principal undertakings at 3§ March 2011 are shown below

Country of
Name of joint venture incorporation Principal activity Holding %
Annmngton Wates (Cove) Limuted Great Britain Property development  50%
Countryside Anmngton {Colchester) Limited  Great Britain Property development  50%
Countryside Anungton (Mill Hill) Limited  Great Britain Property development  50%
Share of net
assets/
(liabilities) Loan Total
£2000 £000 £000
At 1 Apnl 2011 4,157 9,584 13,741
Additions 896 125 1,021
Repayment - (4,1006) (4,106)
Interest on loan - 449 449
Unrealised profit 125 - 125
Share of retarned loss for the year 186 - 186
At 31 March 2012 5,364 6,052 11,416
OTHER INVESTMENTS
2012 201
Group £7000 £7000
At 1 April 2011 162,304 154,193
Additions 38 8,270
Exchange adjustment (940) (159)
Impatrment (34,475) .
At 31 March 2012 126,927 162,304

The Group held a 9 5% investment 1n Autobahn Tank & Rast Holdings GmbH and a 0 01% 1nvestment 1n
Autobahn Tank & Rast GmbH & Co KG and a 9 1% investment 1n Terra Firma Deutsche Annington - V
L P, a private equity tnvestor in Deutsche Annington Immobilien GmbH

As set out 11 Note 35, 1in December 2012 a transaction involving the group resulted in the disposal of these
investments Market values for these investments were determuned during this process In doing so, an
updated impairment review taking into account this latest evidence of valuation was required and performed
As a result of this review, the carrying values of these investments were impaitred by £34 5 million
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14. DEBTORS
GROUP COMPANY
2012 2011 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £°000
Amounts due within one year
Trade debtors 102 178 - -
Other debtors 2,423 1,326 - -
Corporation tax 119 116 - -
Other taxation and soctal security 39 179 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 418 392 - -
3,101 2,191 - -
Amounts due after more than one year
Prepayments and accrued income - 222 - -
- 222 - -
3,101 2413 - -
15. CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND
2012 2011
GROUP £000 £2000
Cash at bank 2,514 1,850
Short-term deposits 96,080 128,639
Holdback custodian account 49 40
Blocked and restricted cash 3,319 10,904

131,962 141,433

In comphance with the RBS funding arrangements and attaching to the group’s loan facilines held by
Annington Rentals (Holdings) Limuted and Anmington Rentals (No 6) Limited, bank accounts exist to cover
various aspects of operations These are 1n the name of each company and admimistered by RBS These
arrangements are considercd temporary and funds will be released provided certain conditions are met
There are no penalties associated with thesc arrangements

Annington Developments Limited, acting as a guarantor to RBS on behalf of the joint venture Countryside
Annington (Mil! Hill) Limited, has a blocked account to cover commitments under the guarantee This was
released on 2 August 2011

A custodian bank account administered by RBS was set up on behalf of Annington Finance No 4 plc during
the 2010 year Funds are held on behalf of the Class A Zero Coupon and Class B Zero Coupon noteholders,
1n accordance with the holdback custody agreement (Further details are set out 1n the Credit Rusk section of
note 21)
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16. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

GROUP COMPANY
2012 2011 2012 2011
£00 £000 £000 £7000
Debenture loans (note 19) 36,243 36,284 - -
Trade creditors 1,103 1,444 - -
Other cred:itors 6,067 4,534 - -
Other 1axation and social security 482 890 - -
Accruals and deferred income 70,848 55,920 - -
114,743 99,072 - -

17. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

GROUP COMPANY
2012 2011 2012 2011
£7000 £°000 £000 £°000
Bank loans (note 19) 123,178 134,300 - -
Debenture loans (note 19) 2,194,105 2,229,787 - -
Dernivatives — interest rate swaps (note 19) 120,768 65,985 - -
Accruals and deferred income 21,837 26,282 - -

2,459,888 2,456,354 - -

18. PROVISION FOR LIABILITIES

Provision for  Provision

GROUP deferred tax for utilities Total
£°000 £000 £000
At 1 Apnl 2011 42 25,928 25,970
Charged to profit and loss account 8 1,051 1,059
Unlhised 1n year - (26) (26)
Effect of decrease 1n rate on opening habihity 2) - (2)
At 31 March 2012 48 26,953 27,001

There 15 a legal agreement to provide for the adoption of private utiliues on sues where there have been
releasecs of property which are currently dependent, for the supply of water and/or certain sewerage
treatment, on adjacent SoSD bases In additon, there 1s a constructive hability to provide for the adoption of
certain utilities on certamn sites which are not base dependent  In the prior year there was a change in the
basis of estimation, resulting 1n a more accurate assessment of the provision Full provision has been made
on the base dependent sies i accordance with the legal agreement and for all obligatons which have
crystallised on non-base dependent sites  Of the total provision, £3 million (2011 - £4 millhion) 1s anucipated
1o be incurred over the next three years (2011 - three years), and the balance during the period June 2019 to
December 2024 The provision has been discounted 1n accordance with the relevant borrowing costs of the
group There 15 a contingent hiability (note 32) 1n respect of base dependent sites where properties have not
been released
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18.

19.

PROVISION FOR LIABILITIES (continued)

The provision for tax arises on taxable profits under the secunitisation regime that are not due to be paid until
cash 1s reahised within AF4 The adjustments tn respect of previous periods have been made to bring the

deferred tax accrual in Iine with the expected future tax habilities

From Apnil 2012, the headline rate of corporation tax reduces from 26% to 24%, with further 1% reductions
expected each year until a rate of 22% 15 in place from Aprnil 2014, as declared in the 2012 Budget
Announcement The deferred tax charge for the year ended 31 March 2012 includes a credst of £2K to
reflect the impact of the reduction in rate te 24% on the deferred tax liabihitics The prospective reductions in
tax rate have, however, not been taken into account since these had not been substanually cnacted as at the

Balance Sheet datc

LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

GROUP

Reconciliation of movements

Annington Finance No.1 ple
7 75% Secured Bonds 2007/2011
8% Secured Bonds 2012/2021

Annington Finance No 4 plc
Secured Notes

Zero Coupon Notes 2022 Class A
Zero Coupon Notes 2023 Class B
Floating Rate Notes 2023 Class B3
Fixed Rate Notes 2023 Class C
Fixed Rate/FRN 2023 Class M
Interest rate swap

Total debentures and swaps

Royal Bank of Scotland - 7yr
Royal Bank of Scotland - 2 5yr
Interest rate swap

Anmngton Rentals (No.6) Limited
Royal Bank of Scotland /Bank of
Ireland - 2013
Interest rate swap

Total bank loans

Total loans and other borrowings

Amortisation

of bond 1ssue

costs and

finance Revaluation Issued/

2012 charges  adjustment (repaid) 2011
£°000 £2000 £7000 £000 £000
- (156) - (27,398) 27,554
397,214 (7,030) - (8,730) 412,974
397,214 (7,186) - (36,128) 440,528
753,062 44,346 - (5,492) 714,208
451,156 30,893 - (3,206) 423,469
221,099 1,508 - (61,413) 281,004
147,836 206 - - 147,630
259,981 749 - - 259,232
116,143 - 79,469 (22,461) 59,135
1,949,277 77,702 79,469 (92,572) 1,884,678
2,346,491 70,516 79,469 (128,700) 2,325,206
- 96 - (55,900) 55,804
44,508 492) - 45,000 -
1,085 - (1,512) - 2,597
45,593 (396) (1,512) {10,900) 58,401
78,670 174 - - 78,496
3,540 - 713) - 4,253
82,210 174 713) - 82,749
127,803 (222) (2,225) (10,900) 141,150
2,474,294 70,204 77,244 (139,600) 2,466,356
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19. LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

2012 2011
Maturity of debt £000 £000
In one year or less, or on demand 36,243 36,284
Between one and two years 118,557 94,644
Between two and five years 155,574 192,258
In five years or more 2,163,920 2,143,170

2,474,294 2,466,356

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FAIR VALUES

2012
Par value Balance Fair
of debt sheet value value
£°000 £°000 £2000
Secured notes
8% Secured Bonds 2012/2021 360,570 397,214 440,350
Annington Finance No.1 plc 360,570 397,214 440,350
Secured notes
Zero Coupon Notes 2022 Class A 1,437,870 753,062 928,864
Zero Coupon Notes 2023 Class B 966,960 451,156 568,963
Floating Rate Notes 2023 Class B3 219,020 221,099 218,165
Fixed Rate Notes 2023 Class C 150,000 147,836 281,109
Fixed Rate/FRN 2023 Class M 260,000 259,981 185,872
Interest rate swap
Pay fixed 6 93% and recerving floating Class B3 - 75,532 75,532
Pay fixed 5 28% and recerving floating Class M . 40,611 40,611
Annington Finance No.4 ple 3,033,850 1,049.277 2,299,116
Bank loan secured
Bank loan 45,000 44,508 45,000
Interest rate swap - 1,085 1,085
Annington Rentals (Holdings) Limuted 45,000 45,593 46,085
Bank lean secured
Bank loan 78,923 78,670 78,923
Interest rate swap - 3,540 3,540
Annington Rentals (No.6) Limited 78,923 82,210 82,463
Total financial lighilities and instruments 3,518,343 2,474,294 2,868,014
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20.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FAIR VALUES (continued)

Secured notes
7 75% Secured Bonds 200772011
8% Secured Bonds 2012/2021

Annington Finance No.1 ple

Secured notes

Zero Coupon Notes 2022 Class A

Zero Coupon Notes 2023 Class B

Floaung Rate Notes 2023 Class B3

Fixed Rate Notes 2023 Class C

Fixed Rate/FRN 2023 Class M

Interest rate swap

Pay fixed 6 93% and receiving floating Class B3
Pay fixed 5 28% and receiving floating Class M

Annington Finance No.4 plc

Bank loan secured

Bank loan

Interest rate swap

Annington Rentals (Holdings) Limited
Bank loan secured

Bank loan

Interest rate swap

Annington Rentals (No.6) Limited

Total financial liabilities and mstruments

Weighted Averages

Weighted average interest rate
Weighted average period of fixed interest rates

The Group’s policy in regard to Borrowers” Risk Management 18 set out in note 21

2011

Par value Balance Farr
of debt sheet value value
£000 £°000 £000
27,398 27,554 27,647
369,300 412,974 439,669
396,698 440,528 467,316
1,448,760 714,208 814,434
974,140 423,469 584,484
280,432 281,004 279,355
150,000 147,630 158,978
260,000 259,232 263,921
- 49322 49,322
- 9,813 9,813
3,113,332 1,884,678 2,160,307
55,900 55,804 55,900
- 2,597 2,597
55,900 58,401 58,497
78,923 78,496 78,923
- 4,253 4,253
78,923 82,749 83,176
3,644,853 2,466,356 2,769,296
2012 2011

7 26% 7 36%

936 years 90l years

The fair values of the Group’s outstanding interest rate swaps have been estimated by calculating the present
value of future cash flows, using appropriate market discount rates, represenuing Level 2 fair value
measurements as defined by FRS 29 “Financial Instruments Disclosures”

Annington Finance No.1 ple

Three classes of secured bonds were 1ssued 1n November 1996, of which one 1s 1n place as at 31 March 2012
The nterest rates and maturity dates are shown 1n the illustraticn within Appendix One

Secunty

These Bonds are secured on the Guaranteed Minimum Rent payable by the SoSD over the 25 years ending
2021 The MQE 1s currently comprised of 39,970 properties (2011 40,113)
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20.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FAIR VALUES (continued)
Annington Finance No 1 ple (continued)

Farr Value

Given the nature of these Notes and the lack of available comparable market evidence of similar financial
instruments, a discounted cash flow approach has been used to arrive at a “fair value’ using a comparable of
Treasury 8% 2021 Notes yielding 1 96% as at 31 March 2012 (2011 yielding 3 68%) with an additional
0 5% risk factor (2011 05%) This discount rate 1s consistent with the assumption used 1n valuing the
portfolio from which this rental income derives and also reflects the nisk for any delay 1n the passing of rental
mcome from the SoSD via a paying agency to our Bank The appled discount rate has been based on an
internal view of risk assessment of this income

Facilities
The Group has one undrawn committed borrowing facility relating to the Annington Finance No | ple
funding

2012 2011
£7000 £000
Expiring 1n one year or less 17,325 17,325

Annington Finance No. 4 plc

Five classes of Secured Bonds have been issued (original 1ssue i December 1997 with a Tap Issue in
February 2002 and a refinance in August 2004) The terest rates and maturity dates are shown in the
Hustration within the financing section of the Business Review

Secunty
All these Notes are secured on the proceeds, generated by Anmngton Property Limited, from excess rental

income from the Retained Estate above the guaranteed mmmum receved from the SoSD, from the disposal
of the Surplus Estate and net rental income from the Surplus Estate  These Notes are also secured on the
remaining Married Quarters Estate

Fair Value

The tar value of the Class A Zero Coupon Notes was based on the market rate applied to the repurchase of
the respective bonds on 19 Apnl 2012 (2011 The fair value of the Class A Zero Coupon Notes was based
on the closing market price on 31 March 2011, following a transaction on that date )

The fair value of the Class B Zero Coupon Notes was based on the market rate apphied to the repurchase of
the respective bonds on 19 Apnil 2012 (2011 28 Apnl 2011)

The fair value of the Class B3 Secured Floating Rate Notes 2023 was based on the market rate appled to the
repurchase of the respective bonds on 10 Apnil 2012 (2011 11 Apnl 201 1)

Given the nature of these Notes and the lack of available market evidence of trading and a lack of
comparable market evidence of similar financial instruments, a discounted cash flow approach has been used
to arrive at a fair value for certain of the notes The various discount rates used are based on the Gilt Rate
Gross Redemption yield on 8% Treasury 2021 as at 31 March 2012 yielding 1 96% (2011 vielding 3 68%)
and then adjusted accordingly to reflect the nsks The applied discount rates shown below reflect an internal
view of risk for the vanious classes of notes, assessed against the future income streams of AF4

2012 2011
Secured Fixed Rate Notes 2023 Class C 526% 6 98%
Secured Fixed Rate Notes 2023 Class M 4 7% 643%
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20.

21.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FAIR VALUES (continued)
Annington Finance No.4 plc (continued)

Fair Value (continued)
This approach represents Level 2 fair value measurements as defined in FRS 29 “Financial Instruments
Disclosures™

The valvauon of the interest rate swaps and offsetting swaps arc based on actual market valuations as at 31
March 2012

Facihities
The Group has two undrawn committed borrowing facilities relating to the Anmngton Finance No 4 ple
funding

2012 2011
£7000 £000
Expiring 1n one year or less 118,008 119,618

Annington Rentals (Holdings) Limited

ARHL entered into a Revolving Seven Year Facility Agreement dated 13 September 2005 with The Royal
Bank of Scotland ple cnabling 1t to borrow up to a maximum of £559 mullion (2011 £55 9 mulhon) This
loan was closed out on 16 February 2012 and the company entered into a new Two and a Half Year Facility
dated 16 February 2012 with The Royal Bank of Scotland plc enabling it to borrow up to a maximum of £45
millton to July 2014 against residential properties held by certain of 1ts subsidiaries (note 11) using a loan to
value ratio of 55% Interest 1s payable on the loan at a floating rate Interest rates are fixed by one (2011 -
two) swap agreement which ends 31 July 2014 (note 19)

Annington Rentals (No.6) Limited

ARG entered 1nto a Revolving Five Year Facility Agreement dated 10 September 2008 with The Royal Bank
of Scotland Plc and The Bank of Ireland, e¢nabling 1t to borrow up to a maximum of £100 nullion against
residential properties held by ARG using a loan to value ratio of 65% On 31 December 2010, the facility
limit was reduced to the balance that had been drawn down on that date, therefore the facility limit 1s now
£78 9 milhon Effecuve 5 December 2011, The Bank of Ireland novated 11s interest 1n the facility and swap
agreements to KW UK Loan Partners Limited On 14 May 2012, the AR6 reached an agreement with both
The Royal Bank of Scotland ple and KW UK Loan Partners Limited to amend the facihty agreement At this
time, the term of the loan was shortened such that the loan 15 payable on 31 December 2012 Interest 1s
payable on the loan at a floaung rate  Repayment of principal and interest are fixed by five (2011 - five)
swap agreements which end on 10 September 2013

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

2012 2011
£000 £°000
Financial assets
Available for sale
Other investments (note 13) 161,402 162,304

161,402 162,304

Loans and receivables

Trade debtors (note 14) 102 178
Other debtors (note 14) 2,423 1,326
Cash and cash equivalents (note 15) 101,962 141,433

104,487 142,937

265,889 305,241
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2012 2011
21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT £000 £2000
(continued)
Financial liabilities
Fair value through the profit and loss account
Interest rate swaps (note 17) 120,768 65,985
Measured at amortiscd cost
Debenture and bank loans {(notes 16 & 17) 2,353,526 2,400,371
Trade and other creditors (note 16) 7,170 5,978

2,360,696 2,406,349

2,481,464 2,472,334

Exposure to credit, hquidity, interest rate and currency nisks arise in the nermal course of the Group's
business activites Derivative financial instruments are 1n place 10 manage exposure to fluctuations n
interest rates but are not employed for speculative purposes

Credit Risk

The Group's principal financial assets are bank and cash balances, short-term deposits, trade and other
receivables and investments

The Group has an agreement with The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc specialist treasury service to manage and
optimse the liquidity resources and requirements of the Group Risk 1s minimised by using a revolving panel
of Banks, which all have been identified as low risk according to Credit Agency ratings and the maximum
amount of funds that can be placed with any one 1nstitution 1s hmited The Banks and cnteria are reviewed
and updated periodically to ensure they reflect the prevailing market conditions

The Group has a low credit risk as the Retained Estate portfolio 1s leased on a 200-year underlease to the
SoSD  All properties under these arrangements continue to be maintatned by, and remain entirely under the
control of the SoSD dependent upon their operational needs The rent 1s payable quarterly 1n advance and to
date, this has always been received by the due date

The Group’s credit nisk 1s attnibuted primarily to us trade and other receivables, which consists principally of
instalments due under property disposals, agreed dilapidatons claims outstanding and rents due from tenants
The balance 1s low compared to the scale of the balance sheet

Amounts due under property disposals related to the sale of land 1o the joint venture company Countryside
Annington (Mill Hill} Limited This was considered low nisk as the Group has a pnimary charge over the
land 1n the joint venture company Thus balance was recovered 1n full in March 2011

Agreed dilapidations claims are due from the SoSD and under an agreed protocol, they are due to be seuled
within 30 days of invoice date

Tenant debtors relate to properties let to thurd parties  Let properties includes those released and returned
from the SoSD to the Homes Subgroup, where a rental strategy 1s being pursued, and propertics within the
Rentals Subgroup The Group employs a managing agent to actively pursue arrears and this pohicy has
resulted 1n mimimal bad debits to date

Other than amounts due from the joint venture compames and dilapidations claims outstanding, the Group
has no other significant concentration of creditor nisk with exposure spread over a large number of tenants,
and cash deposited with various banks by The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc  The receivables (note 14) are
stated after an allowance for doubtful recervables, and allowances for impairments are made where
appropriate

The carrying amount of financtal assets recorded in the financial statements represcnts the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit nsk
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21.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Debt Management

The Group's borrowings are through the 1ssue of various classes of notes, on the secuntsation of the MQE
by way of two income streams generated by the portfolio (1) Guaranteed Rental Income received from the
SoSD, (n) Excess income from net sales and rents There are various borrowing facilities 1n place to ensure
that there 1s no default in the repayment of the borrowing and interest to the Bond Holders These facilities
are renewed annually and to date have never been called upon

The Group has two medium-term external bank loans secured on the Rentals Subgroup rental portfolios (note
19)

The Group has no overdraft arrangements 1n place as 1t has adequate funds invested on the Money Market 1n
short to medium-term deposits to mamtain its short-term hquidity In addition the Group also forecasts its
liquidity requirements using five-ycar rolling cash forecasts, which are updated on a monthly basis

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities (n the Group wall be able (0 continue as going concerns
while maximusing the return to stakeholders through the optimusation of the debt and equity balance The
capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings (note 19), cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising 1ssued share capital, reserves
and retained earnings {note 25}

There are two bank facility agreements 1 place that require covenant tests to be maintained

Loan to value Interest cover
Annington Rentals (Holdings) Limuted 65% 115%
Anninglon Rentals (No 6) Limuted 65% 120%

All these covenant tests have been complied with during the year ended 31 March 2012
Interest Rate Management

The Group 15 exposed to interest rate risk as entittes 1n the Group borrow funds at floating interest rates
There are a number of 1nterest rate swaps 1n place to fix the exposure the Group has to fluctuations 1n interest
rates

Annington Finance No 4 plc has two interest rate swap agreements 1n place for the Floating Rate Notes
(since December 1997} where the Group pays fixed 6 93% and receives variable rates linked to LIBOR, of
offsetting swaps amounting to £567 million (2011 £506 milhion) 1n place to fix interest rate exposures that
result by the early redemption of Bonds ahead of the ortgmnal payment profile, where the Group receives
fixed at 6 93% and pays varable rates hinked to LIBOR Anmnglon Finance No 4 ple has a net nottonal
liability position of £219 million (2011 £280 mullion)

In August 2004 two further interest rate swap agreements for an additional £260 mullion (2011 £260
million) were entered into by Anmungton Finance No 4 plc for the Class M Fixed/Floatng Rate Notes which
comes mnto effect in April 2015 with a termination date tn January 2023 The Group pays fixed 5 284% and
recerves variable rates linked to LIBOR

As at 31 March 2012, the fair value of the Anmington Finance No 4 plc interest rate swaps was a hability of
£297 milhion (2011 £183 mulhon) and the offsetting swaps was an asset of £182 malhon (2011 £124
mullion)

Annmington Rentals (Holdings) Limited had swap agreements in place from December 2005 to February
2012 Under these agreements ARHL paid at a fixed weighted average of 5 62% (2011 4 60%) and received
variable rates linked to LIBOR At the beginning of the financial year ARHL had interest rate swaps of £55 9
mullion, these were closed out on 16 February 2012 On the same date ARHL. entered into an agreement for
interest rate swaps totalling £45 mullion, comprised of a £30 million pay fixed interest at 2 59% and receive
floating linked to 1.IBOR and an interest rate cap currently standing at £15 nmulhon fixed at 2 59%, maturing
July 2014 As at 31 March 2012, the fair value of interest rate swaps was a hahlity of £1 | mullion (2011

liability £2 6 mullhion)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Interest Rate Management (continued)

Anmngton Rentals (No 6) Linuted has a number of swap agreements dated from September 2008 onwards
under which 1t pays at a fixed weighted average of 5 33% (2011 4 12%) and receives vanable rates linked 1o
LIBOR on interest rate swaps of £78 9 mulhion (2011 £78 9 milhion) As at 31 March 2012, the fair value of
the interest rate swaps was a hability of £3 5 million (2011 £4 3 mallion)

The Group does not hedge account for 1ts 1nterest rate swaps and states them at far value, with changes in
fair value included 1n the Profit and Loss Account

Foreign Currency Management

To manage foreign currency exposure, the Group holds commutted bul undrawn funds on deposit 1n Euros to
provide further investment in Terra Firma Deutsche Anmington — V L P, a private equity investor n
Deutsche Anmington Immobilien GmbH (see note 13 and Principal Risks and Uncertainties within the
Directors’” Report Business Review) These Euro funds are managed by RBS Treasury Services to optimise
the returns to the Group At 31 March, the Sterhing equivalent of Euro funds held on deposit amounted to
£37 3 mullion (2011 £41 3 mllion)

Anmington Reserve Limited, an mtermediate holding company, had a Euro denominated loan payable to an
overseas subsidiary, following a paymeant 1n June 2011 the balance 1s now £ml milhion (2011 £7 2 million)

The exchange differences on the Euro deposits and the loan are recognised through the profit and loss
account

The mmvestment held 1n Autobahn Tank & Rast Holdings GmbH (note 13) 1s held at cost by a subsidiary
company whose functional currency 15 Euros Consequently the Group has exposure to flucieations 1a the
Pounds Sterling to Euros foreign exchange rate with respect to the carrying amount of its net investment in
the subsidiary The Group does not hedge against this risk and movements are taken directly to reserves

Cash Management and Liquidity

Cash levels are monntored to ensure sufficient resources are available to meet the Group's current and
projected operational commitments The Group has borrowing facihties in place for Annington Finance No |
ple £17 3 million (2011 £17 3 muillion) and Anmington Finance No 4 plc £1 18 million (2011 £119 6 mullion)
to ensure no default on the quarterly bond repayments Shori to medium-term money market deposits are
used to manage hiquidity whilst maximising the rate of return on cash resources, giving due consideration to
rnsk Longer-term Liquidity requirements are forecast to be met out of future operational cash and income
streams

Sensitivity Analysis

In managing interest ratc and currency nisks the Group aims to reduce the 1mpact of short-term fluctuations
on the Group's earmings Over the longer term, however, pecrmanent changes n forcign exchange and interest
rates may have an impact on consolidated earntngs

At 31 March 2012, it 1s estimated that a movement 1n the interest rate by 50 basis points would have the
following effect on the fair value adjustment in the Group's profit and loss account The sensitivity has been
calculated from data supplied from our bankers

2012 2011
£000 £7000
Sensitivity on interest rate swaps
Market to market valuation as at 31 March 120,768 65,985
Fair value (write-back)/write-off to profit and loss account
Assumed shift 1o interest rates
50 basis points positive (21,654) (22,129)
50 basis points negative 23,198 23,469
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Sensitivity Analysis (continued)

In respect of 1ts investment 1in Euro denominated niet investments, management estimate that the impact of a
5% decrease 1n the Pounds Sterling to Euros foreign exchange rate would 1mpact reserves by an increase of
£1 0 million (2001 £14 mllion), a 5% increase would decrease reserves by £09 mithon (2011 £13
million)

In respect of its Euros denominated cash deposits, short term investments and loans, management estimate
that a 5% decrease in the Pounds Sterling to Euros foreign exchange rate would increase the credit
recogmised through the profit and loss account by £1 8 nullion (2011 £1 6 mullion) A 5% increase would
decrease the credit recognised through the profit and loss account by £2 0 mullion (2011 £1 8 mullion)

Liquidity and interest risk financial maturity analysis

In respect of non-denvative financial liabilities, the following table provides a maturity analysis for
individual elements The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
habilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows In respect of denvauve financial instruments, the fair values have been
calculated using appropriate market discount rates to arrive at the future cash flows

2012

Less than One to Two to More than
Total oneyear twoyears five years five years
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other financial liabilines 7,170 7,170 - - -
Secured bond 1ssues 3,883,955 97,722 94,890 244,100 3,447,243
Loans and other borrowings 131,750 5,795 84,051 41,904 -

Total non-derivative financial Liabilities 4,022,875 110,687 178,941 286,004 3,447.243

Derivative financial instruments

Denvative financial lhabilities 143,286 (606) 10,652 51,703 81,537

Total financial habilities 143,286 (606) 10,652 51,703 81,537

Listed investments

Trade and other debiors (2,423) (2,423) - - -

Cash and deposits (138,991) (136,336) (511 (2,144) -
(141,414) (138,759 (511) (2,144) -

Total financial instruments 4,024,747 (28,678) 189,082 335,563 3,528,780
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22.

23,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (contimued)
Liquidity and interest risk financial maturity analysis (continued)
2011

Less than One to Two to More than
Total oneyear twoyears five years five years

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other financial habihiies 5,978 5,978 - - -
Secured bond 1ssues 4,077,827 100,829 98,082 265,544 3,613,372
Loans and other borrowtngs 143,236 2,853 59,540 80,843 -

Total non-derivative financial habilities 4,227,041 109,660 157,622 346,387 3,613,372

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial liabilities 80,517 4,759 446 28,525 46,787
Total financial liabilities 4,307,558 114,418 158,067 374,912 3,712,219
Trade and other debtors (1,504) (1,504) - - -
Cash and deposits (141,432) (138,204) (1,167 (2,061) -

(142,936y (139,708} (1,167 (2,061) -

Total financial instruments 4,164,622 (25,289} 156,901 372,851 3,660,159

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The only financial assets whose carrying value 1s stated at fair value are the listed investments representing
Level 1 fair value measurement as defined 1n FRS 29 “Financiai Instruments Disclosures” A disclosure of
the fair value of other investments has not been made because the fair value cannot be reliably measured, as
there is no quoted market price 1n an active market, also there 1s hmuted comparable evidence available for
valuation purposes for similar business models The carrying amounts of these nvestments are stated 1n note
13 The Group does not intend to dispose of the investments in the short-term

The fair values for trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and cash at bank and in hand equate
to their book value

The fair values of the interest rate swaps and debenture and bank loans are shown i note 20 The only
financial habilsties whose carrying value 1s stated at fair value are the interest rate swaps representing Level
2 fair value measurement as defined 1n FRS 29 “Financial Instruments Disclosures”

CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
2012 2011
£ £
Authorised, called up, allotted and fully paid
13 ordinary shares of £1 each 13 13
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STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS ON RESERVES

GROUP

At 1 Apnl 2011

Surplus on valuatuon of properties
Transfers

Exchange differences

Retained loss for the financial year

At 31 March 20112

COMPANY
At | Apnil 2011
Retained loss for the financial year

At 31 March 20112

Profit and
loss Revaluation

account reserve Total

£°000 £000 £7000
(94,639) 8,484 (86,155)

- B.850 8,850

5,433 (5,433) -
(425) - (425)

97,257 - 97,257

7,626 11,901 §9,527

Profit and

loss

account

£2000

The realisation of property revaluation gains of previous years shown in the Consolidated Note of Historical
Cost Profits and Losses 1s mainly attributable to the minonty interest and only the Group's share 1s shown

above as a result

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS/(DEFICIT)

GROUP

Profit/{loss) for the financial year
Revaluation in year
Exchange differences

Net decrease/(increase) 1n shareholders’ deficit
Opening shareholders’ deficut

Closing shareholders’ funds/(deficit)

COMPANY
Loss for the financial year

Net increase 1n shareholders’ deficit
Opening sharcholders’ deficut

Closing sharcholders’ deficit

2012 2011
£000 £000
97,257 (30,362)
8,850 6,958

(425) az1y
105,682 (23,525)
(86,155)  (62,630)

19,527 (86,155)

2012 2011

£7000 £000
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26. MINORITY INTERESTS

2012 2011
£°000 £7000
At l Apnl 1,632,287 1,617,747
(Loss)/profit for the financial year (192,013) 28,624
Currency translation difference on foreign currency net investments 421 (120)
Revaluauon of properties 753,583 (14,156}
Other (4,052) -
Fair value adjustments on available-for-sale investments - 221
Recycling of revaluation reserves to profit & loss on disposal - (29}
Closing minority interest 2,189,384 1,632,287
27. RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
2012 2011
£°000 £7000
Operating profit 146,874 141,582
Depreciation charge 47 39
Deccrease in debtors (1,080) 4,565
Increase 1n creditors 9,496 6,936
Increase 1n provisions 1,024 2,527
Net cash inflow from operating activities 156,361 155,649
28. ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT
At Other non- At
31 March cash 1 April
2012  Cash flow changes 2011
£00 £000 £000 £7000
Cash at bank and in hand 101,962 (37,264) (2,207) 141,433
Debts falling due within one year (36,243) 36,284 (36,243) (36,284}
Debts falling due after more than one year (2,438,051) 102,637 (110,616) (2,430,072)
(2,474,294) 138,921 (146,859) (2,466,356)
Net debt (2,372,332) 101,657 (149,066) (2,324,923)

Non-cash changes comprise amortisation of discounts and 1ssue costs relating to debt 1ssues
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29,

30.

31.

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT

Decrease 1n cash 1n the year

Cash outflow from decrease 1n debt

Amortisation of debt 13sue costs and other non-cash
charges

Other non-cash charges

Fair value adjustment 1n derivatives

Movement in net debt in the year
Opening net debt

Exchange translation movement

Closing net debt

FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commutments are as follows

GROUP

Contracted for but not provided for
Building contracts

2012 2011
£000 £000
(37,264) (3.028)
138,921 123,745
(77.590)  (76,677)
7,975 12,039
(77.244)  (13,853)
(45,202) 42,226
(2,324,923)  (2,366,579)
(2,207) (570)
(2,372,332)  (2,324,923)
2012 2011
£2000 £000

881 3,854

In 2011, Annington Rentals (No 4) Limited has entered 1nto a contract for the construction of 24 new units
and sigmficant refurbishment of 84 exisung units at Uxbndge The company 1s commuited to pay a
contractual percentage of the total build costs Unul construction 1s completed, the total amount to which the
company ts committed 1s uncertain Based on the terms of the contract, at 31 March 2012, the amount
committed was not less than £881,230 (2011 £3,854,388) As such, this 1s the balance disclosed above

Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

GROUP
Leases which expirc

Within one year
Within two to five years

PENSION COMMITMENTS

The Group contributes to employees’ personal defined contribution pension schemes

made for the year were £474,574 (2011 £483,675)

Land and buildings Other
2012 2011 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000
45 57 35 45
515 514 83 75
560 571 118 120

The contributions
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33.

4.

CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As stated 1n note 18, there 1s a contingent hability 1o allow for the adoption of private utlities on sites which
are currently base dependent (dependent on the SoSD) for their supply of water and sewerage treatment and
where there has been no releases of property from the SoSD  This amounts to £111 7 mllion (2011 £108 3
million)

There 15 a contingent asset 1n respect of profit share recoverable on future utiliies expenditure covered by the
provision referred to 1n note 19 The amount 1s subject to agreement with the 508D as to nming of recovery
and method of calculation

Anmngton (DA) Investment Limited had commutted to provide €44 8 million at 31 March 2012 (2011 €448
million) of additional funding/investment to Terra Firma Deutsche Annington L P under the terms of is
mvestment 1 that partnership On 30 November, 1n response to a call notice from the General Partner,
Annington (DA) Investment Limited made a further investment of £20 7 mullion, reducing this commitment
During December 2012, as part of a senes of transactions described 1n Note 35, a disposal of the entire
mnterest 1n Terra Firma Deutsche Annington L P took place, reducing the amount committed to £ml

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The directors consider the Nomura Group of companies, of which Nomura Investments (AH) Limited 1s the
principal UK subsichary, as a related party as during the year it had the ability to exercise a controlling
influence over part of the Anmington Group through the Nomura Group’s holding of warrants to subscribe
for ordinary shares in Annington Homes Limited

In February 2007, a major land development site with 187 existing properties was sold at a market value of
£36 7 nullon to the Anmington Holdings plc Group joint venture, Countryside Anmington (Mill Hill)
Limited In March 2009, in response to adverse economic and trading conditions the joint venture negotiated
a reduction in the original price, a deed of varation was signed which reduced the amount to be paid for this
fland by £6 7 mulhon In consideration for this reduction in ‘Price’ Annington Property Limited became
entitled to ‘priority payments’ of a more generous form of overage up to £15 million 1f the profits of the Joint
Venture recover

Durning the current year, the group has had transactions with jomnt ventures that including the drawdown and
repayment of borrowings and associated interest During 2011, the final land payment for Mili Hill was
received by Annington Property Limmited

During the year, the Annington Property Limited invested £896k 1n The Inglis Consoruum LLP (note 12)

CONTROLLING PARTY
Le Grand Annington Limited 1s the ultimate holding company for the consolidated Group

As at 31 March 2011, the Nomura Group of compantes, of which Nomura Investments (AH) Limited 1s a
subsidiary, had the ability to exercise a controlling influence over part of the Annington Group through
Nomura Investments {(AH) Linuted’s holding of warrants 1n relation to the shares of Annington Homes
Limued (note 11) It also has the ability to exercise a controlling influence over the remainder of the
Annington Group by way of cash warrants 1n Anmngton Rentals (Holdings) Limited and Anmngton
Developments (Holdings) Limited These cash warrants are exercisable at any time 1n whole or 1n part

As set out 1n 1n Note 33, 1n December 2012, as part of a senes of transactions, all the warrants referred to 1n
the paragraph above were exercised Following these transactions, Nomura Investments (AH) Limited had
the ability to exercise control over the group and as part of the transactions sold 1ts interests to Terra Firma
Special Opportumties Fund I, LP  This sale completed on 13 December 2012 The Company's direct
subsidiary Anmngton Holdings ple sold 1ts interest 1n the remainder of the group to Terra Firma Special
Opportunities Fund I, L P, on the same day
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Since the year end, the Company repurchased and cancelled £13 6 milhion (2011 £17 6 million) of Class B3
Floating Rate Notes on the interest payment dates falling due 1n Apnil  Then the company partly redeemed
£410 per note in July, £537 per note 1n October and £433 per note in January 2013 The pool factor of
outstanding notes 1s 54 68% (2011 68 48%)

Further deposits were transferred into the holdback accounts of £7 | million mm April, July, October and
January 2013 (2011 - £6 6 million) for Class A Zero Coupon noteholders and £4 8 million (2011 £4 1
mullion) for Class B Zero Coupon noteholders

A summary of the repurchase and cancellation of Class A Zero Coupon Notes and Class B Zero Coupon
Notes transactions follows

Holdback Transactions  Nominal Values of Notes

Purchased and cancelled

Class A Class B Class A Class B

£000 £2000 £000 £°000

Purchase Class A Zero Notes (7.131) - (10,080) -
Purchase Class B Zero Notes - (4,723) - (7,060)
Transfers to Holdback Accounts 7,131 4,779 - -
Total movements since year end - 56 (10,080) (7.060)

On 14 May 2012, the Annington Rentals (No 6) Limited reached an agreement with both The Royal Bank of
Scotland plc and KW UK Loan Partners Limited to amend the borrowing facility agreement At this time, the
term of the loan was shortened such that the loan 1s payable on 31 December 2012 and linited changes in
control are permutted

On 27 June 2012, Anmington Rentals (No 6) Limited and Annington Rentals (No 7) Limited entered into a
four year £105 mullion Facility Agreement with The Royal Bank of Scotland ple This facility allows funds
to be drawn down for a period starung on the date of the agreement and ending 45 months later The first
drawdown will be used to repay the existing Anmington Rentals (No 6) Limuted facihty and outstanding
swaps

On 22 October, the £105 mallion facility between RBS and AR6 & AR7 was further drawndown by ARG
(£4 6 milhon) and AR7 (£3 | million) Subsequent to thus, the undrawn commitment under the faciity
agreement 1s £12 6 million, available to be drawn when the facility conditions can be met  On this date,
denvauves were opened to hedge against interest rale movements on the newly drawn balances, consisting of
interest rate swaps and caps fixed at 1 04% wiath maturity in ine with the facihity

On 31 October, Annington Rental Holdings Limited made a further £1 million voluntary repayment of the
RBS £45 mullion faciliy which reduces the outstanding amount to £43 million This repayment 18 1n advance
of thc mandatory repayment obligation under the facility agreement that requires £2 million be repaid by
January 2013

On 30 November 2012 the group made a further investment in Terra Firma Deutsche Annington - V L P of
£20 7 mulhon

In a senies of transactions 1in December 2012, Terra Firma Special Opportunities Fund I, L P acquired the
majority of the group As part of these transactions

- a newly incorporated member of the group, Anmington Finance No 5 ple 1ssued £550 million Sentor PIK
notes due 2023,

- the investmenis 1n the Annington Rentals (Holdings) Limited sub-group and the Annington Development
(Hoidings) Limited subgroup were transferred from Annington Holdings ple to Arnington Homes Limited

- the share warrants 1ssued by Annington Homes Limited were exercised by Nomura Investments (AH)
Limuted, resulting in Annington Homes Limited receiving £1,489 7 million 1n return for 1ssuing 75,636
shares, providing Nomura Investments (AH) Limited with control of the restructured Annington Homes
Limuted group,
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued)

4 subsequent reducuon n share capital and dividend resulted 1n the payment of a £1.489 7 mullion
dividend,

the cash warrants i1ssued by Anmington Rentals (Holdings) Limited and Annington Development
{Holdings) Limited were exercised by Nomura Investments (AH) Limiuted, resulting 1n a payment of £74 7
millien,

the investments 1n Autobahn Tank & Rast Holdings GmbH, Autobahn Tank & Rast GmbH & Co KG and
Terra Firma Deutsche Annmington - V L P along with cash balances totaling £565 1 milhon were
distributed out of the group As a result of this, an updated impairment review taking nto account this
latest evidence of valuation was performed Given the available evidence of the market value in November
that may be ascribed to the market value 1n March and the comparability of the value 1n use and the market
value, an adjusting post balance sheet date event was recorded to impair these mvestment at March 2012
and the carrying values of these investments were impatred by £34 5 mulhon,

the interest 1n the group held by both Nomura and the Company’s direct subsidiary, Annington Holdings
ple, were sold to Terra Firma Special Opportumties Fund 1, L P

As a result of these transactions, from 3 December 2012, the Company’s sole investment 1s 1n Annington
Holdings plc
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Background

The Homes Subgroup was created tn 1996, for the sole purpose of acquiring certain interests in the MQE in
England and Wales, together with certain related assets, from the SoSD on 5 November 1996

This purchase included approximately 760 sites contaiming 55,362 housing umts (the Retained Estate) and 58 sites
containing 2,374 units (the Surplus Estate), together 1n each case with certain related assets

The Retained Estate was purchased on a 999 year lease and immediately leased back to the SoSD for a period of
200 years subject to certain Underleases which permit the properties be used by the 508D to provide housing for
married service personnel and their famulies The Underleases provide for the SoSD to pay rent at a 58% discount
to open market rent on a quarterly basis These rents are subject to five-yearly reviews aganst market values,
subject to the agreed discount All properties subject to these arrangements continue to be maintained by and
remain entircly under the control of the SoSD, dependent upon its operational needs The wdentification of surplus
properties and the tming of their release to the Homes Subgroup 1s entirely at the discretion of the SoSD and, upon
not less than six months’ notice, the Homes Subgroup 1s obliged to accept any propertics declared surplus At the
end of the first 25 years following the instial acquisition, the level of rent payable for each individual site 1s subject
to review and renegotiation

The Surplus Estate was acquired with freehold utle and arrangements relating to the supply of certain unhitties The
related assets consutute several hundred properties including houses, community buildings, playgrounds and a range
of amenity facilities designed to support the restdential estate

The Master Agreement, dated 5" November 1996, contains certain obligations, on the part of the SoSD, to make
guaranteed minimum payments of rent and, annually, 1o release to Annington a pre-set minimum number of units
that have become surplus to requirement, known as the Minimum Relcase The Guaranteed Minimum Payment
conlinues to be payable 1n accordance with a predefined schedule until December 2021 The Mimmum  Release
obligation, to release a mummum of 13,213 in the pertod 1996-2021 has been sausfied with 15,084 units having
been released as at 31 March 2012 Although the SoSD 1s under no ebligation to release further units, from a
practical point of view 1t 1s expected that properties will continue to be released over time, as the S0S8D’s
requirements change

At the ume of acquisitton the SoSD and the Homes Subgroup entered into a Profit Share Agreement The Homes
Subgroup 1s obliged to make payments to the SoSD calculated on a percentage of certain gains made, or deemed to
have been made, on the disposal of umts or sites (including by way of letting, sale or otherwise) The agreement
ended on 5 November 2011 with no further obligations on disposals afier that date As at 31 March 2012, £161 2
million (2011 £161 2 million) had been paid, to HM Treasury in Profit Share, since November 1996

Ohjectives and Strategy

The management of the Homes Subgroup’s interest 1n the MQE can be said to be ‘reactive’ in that, with the
exception of the rent review process, 1t 1s only when the SoSD declares properties surplus that the Homes Subgroup
can fully engage in property related activites However, the main objective continues to be maintaining and, where
possible, mmproving the value of the Homes Subgroup’s interests in the MQE A key driver in this value 1s the rent
revicw process By ensuring that market rents for comparable properues are fully researched, the Homes Subgroup
ensures that any upward movement n rents 1s captured and used in the review process Given the length of the lease
arrangements, anticipated rental income 15 a sigmficant factor in the calculanon of value

Once properuies leased to the SoSD are returned to the Homes Subgroup, all disposal options are rigorously
appraised, including rental, thurd party sales, or redevelopment, 1n order to idenufy the optimum added value
strategy for the Homes Subgroup The Homes Subgroup 1s entitled to receive the freehold to all released properties
and obliged to undertake a range of works to enable the properties 1o be occupied or sold to third parties, mcluding
the provision of adoptable utility supphes In the case of sales to third parties, the Homes Subgroup assesses what
level of refurbishment should be undertaken to create the optimum added value The Homes Subgroup bears the
cost of both elemenits of work before lettings or sales are achieved A proportion of the costs to return the umts to
tenantable condition may be recoverable by way of claims for dilapidations against the SoSD
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Objectives and Strategy (continued)

The Homes Subgroup continued to examine the way in which 1t evaluates the options for dealing with future sites to
ensure units are prepared for disposal in a way that meets the changing market condiions Historically, the Homes
Subgroup has used a strategy that has prepared large numbers of properties for sale over a short pertod of time
However, with the property market and economic climate continuing to deteriorate, the Homes Subgroup has
chosen to retain more properties for rent and to prepare smaller numbers of properues for sale in order to keep
completed stock levels low and has re-phased works to optimuse cashflow requirements  Ths strategy 1s expected
to continue for the foreseeable future

Financing

The Homes Subgroup 1s a long-term investor by nature and, therefore, long-term debt arrangements have been
secured 1n order to defray the risk of refinancing within the short to medium-term At the same time, interest rates
have been fixed 1n order to remove the financial nsk arnising from fluctuating rates

A simplified diagram of the principal sources and application of funds for the Homes Subgroup 1s shown below

SOQURCE OF FUNDS
SoS0 AENT & INCOME FROM PROPERTIES
LESS PROPERTY HOLDING COSTS
So8D PAQFIT SHARE & QVERHEADS

|

ANNINGTON PROPERTY LIMITED
ASSET BACKED COMPANY
{39 970 MCQE PROPERTIES)

|
[ l

ANNINGTON FINANCE NO 1 PLC ANNINGTON FINANCE NO 4 PLC
SPECIAL PURPOSE VEHICLE SPECIAL PURPOSE VEHICLE
(SECURITISED ON GUARANTEED MINIMUM RENT) {SECURITISED ON SURPLUS CASH)

l !

SERVICE OF DEBT SERVICE OF DEBT
I ]
NOTES ISSUED FINANCE COSTS NOTES ISSUED FINANCE COSTS
8% SECURED BONDS £17 3M LIQUIDITY SECURED ZERQ COUPON FIXED INTEREST
201272021 FACILITY RBS NOTES 2022 CLASS A RATE SWAP 6 93%
{B3 nota}
7 75% SECURED BONDS SECURED ZERO COUPON
2007/2011 {repaid October NOTES 2023 CLASS B OFFSETTING SWAPS

2011)

SECURED FLOATING

FIXED INTEREST RATE

SWAP 5 28%
RATE NOTES 2023 CLASS B3 M note)
8% SECURED FIXED RATE £43 5M LIQUIDITY
NQOTES 2023 CLASS C FACILITY RBS
6 6% SECURED FIXED/FLOATING £75M FACILITY
NOTES 2023 CLASS M NATIONWIDE

The Homes Subgroup’s financial position 1s underpinned by the rent receivable from the SoSD  With effect from
January 2008, this rent 1s sufficient to meet debt service requirements without the need for sales Based on current
average rents, So0SD would need (o release more than 9,500 units before this situation changed This means that the
Homes Subgroup does not have to consider hquudity 1ssues when determining appropnate strategies and 1s 1n a
robust position, confident that the current market conditions will not call for sigmficant changes to operations

58




LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

APPENDIX ONE
ANNINGTON HOMES LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES (HOMES SUBGROUP)

Financial Position and Accounting Policies

The accounting policies are stated in Note | to the accounts

As stated elsewhere 1n the review, the Homes Subgroup bhas long-term funding arranged through the securttisation
vehicles AF1 and AF4 Both of these companes are reviewed by thewr respective rating agencies as part of the
1ssuance conditions There has been no reduction 1n thetwr respective ratings of classes of notes during the year
Liabiliues to AF1 are exactly matched to the Guaranteed Mimimum Payment, received each quarter from the SoSD
Cash recerved 1s placed on deposit for the short period between receipt and payment te AF1 note holders

Any rent received over and above the Guaraniced Mimmum Payment, plus net sales proceeds are accumulated
throughout each calendar quarter, with cash being held on short-term deposit to meet the quarterty AF4 payments
At the end of each quarter, all cash so accumulated must be used, firstly to meet interest obligations and secondly to
collateralise and/or redecm outstanding principal Consequently, all cash generated by Annington Property Limited
(APL) operations 1s utthsed at the end of each quarter

Since January 2008, the rental income received from the SoSD has been sufficient to meet the Homes Subgroup’s
debt service requirements without the need to sell properties  This puts the Homes Subgroup n a robust position to
weather the current economic downturn and the depressed state of the residential property market

In 2004, AF4 restructured its debt creating a surplus of £260m [t was agreed at the time, that these funds should be
held by Annington Homes Limited (AHL) and used for corporate development in the wider Group These funds
have been, and continue to be, used for mnvestment in both the Rentals Subgroup and the Developments Subgroup

The Royal Bank of Scotland ple Agency Treasury Services provides the treasury function to the Group Surplus
cash 1s swept 1nto a single treasury account from which cash deposits are placed wiath a vartety of pre-qualified
counterparties, with the objective of achieving nterest returns commensurate with rmmmal risk to principal

Through the various arrangements outlined 1n note 22, the Homes Subgroup 1s protected against adverse movements
in 1nterest rates and s protected 1n the short-term from both delays 1n receipt of the Guaranteed Mimmum Reatal
payment from the SoSD and shortfalls 1n operational cash flow resulung from adverse market conditions Purning
the year 1t has not been necessary to draw on any of the liqudity facilities

APL’s interest in the MQE 1s almost unique 1n that 1t consists, primarily, of properties held under a senes of long
leases extending for 999 years from 1996 and each of which are subject 1o underlease arrangements granted to the
SoSD extending for 200 years from [996 As a consequence, the property valuation takes note of the contracted
rental income, of which some 15 guaranteed up to December 2021, which 1s subject to rent reviews every five years
In forming a view as to the value of these interests the valuer, Allsop LLLP, has regard to the quality of income
(supported by governmeat covenant) and the anticipated changes to the size of the portfolio (forecast release of
properties by SoSD) over a period of 70 years Where a quantity of properties (s forecast to be released, an
assessment of potenuial disposal value 1s made through a number of assumptions regarding tirming and changes to
property values A sample of properties which have already been released, but not sold, as at the date of valuation,
is tnspected and individual values assigned to sionilar house types in the same location All of the above provides the
basis for estmating a cash flow which 1s then discounted at rates commensurate with the level of assessed nsk

The valuc denived from this calculation 1s then considered 1n the context of affordability Given the current financial
environment, which has led 10 a shortage of available funding, the valuer obtains institutional views on the
availability of debt and equity, the appropriate balance between the two and the respective associated costs of such a
transaction The consensus view 1n respect of these factors 1s then incorperated into the assessment of market value
as at the balance sheet date

The number of properties released and available for sale 1s a small percentage of the overall total covered by this
valuation Given that the sigmficant majonity of value 1s dernived from the assumed future rent flows and esumated
future sales, there 15 no significant impact on the valuation 1n periods when lower volumes of transactional evidence
1s available Further analysis 1s provided at note 10
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Background

The Rentals Subgroup was established 1n 1999 wath the purpose of creating a senes of residential 1nvestment
portfohos, free of the constrainis and condmions governing the Homes Subgroup portfolio  Since that ume the
Rentals Subgroup has grown to eight subsidiary companies with 1,614 propertics owned and/or managed Separate
external funding has been established through two loan facilities, drawn-down to the value of £45 million and £78 9
rmlhion at 31 March 2012 These facilities are repayable 1n 2014 and 2013 respectively A new £105 million facility
has been entered into on 27 June 2012 to replace the factlity repayable n 2013 Further details arc set out n
Financing (below)

Objectives and Strategy

A series of subsidianes has been established to hold residennial properties with different commercial characteristics,
each requiring shightly different management decisions to achieve their individual objectives The Rentals Subgroup
provides a number of offerings including letting properties to provide comparable evidence for market rents 1n key
locations for the Homes Subgroup, letting properties to individuals with a view to making strategic gains in the
medium-term and bulk letung properties to orgamisations {(such as umiversities, housing associations and local
authonities) to secure longer term rental contracts

Since the Homes Subgroup cannot influence which or how many properties are released by the SoSD, the Rentals
Subgroup was created to provide both diversification and a more stable business model in which workflow and
resources could be more evenly managed The Rentals Subgroup continues to grow and has been able to improve
returns through actively managing tenanctes and rental levels It has the financial resources to acquire portfolios or
bulk purchase new build properties 1n areas where 11 has 1dentified a known need or where market improvements are
anticipated To date, the Rentals Subgroup has concentrated on acquiring houses 1n areas generally associated with
MQE locations, rather than city centre blocks of flats There 1s currently no intention to change this strategy

Financing

The Rentals Subgroup 1s financed by two bank facihities (note 20) and intra-group finance In February 2012 the
Rentals Subgroup entered into a 30-month facility with The Royal Bank of Scotland plc This facility 1s secured on
propertics owned by Annington Rentals Limiled, Annington Rentals (No 2) Limited, Annington Rentals (No 3)
Limited, Anmington Rentals (No 4) Limted and Annington Rentals (No 5) Limited At the same ume as entering
into the facility, the Rentals Subgroup entered into an interest rate swap n order to remove the risk of fluctuating
interest rates during the period of the facihty The proceeds of this facility were used to repay the previous bank
facility

Annington Rentals (No 6) Limited (AR6) had a £78 9 mullion loan facility jointly with The Royal Bank of Scotland
plc and Bank of Ireland Again, the exposure to fluctuating interest rates has been fixed by entering into an interest
rate swap On entering thus facility in 2009, AR6 utilised the funds to repay some of the intra-group finance and 1o
expand the number of properties acquired for renting to the SoSD Effective 5 December 2011, Bank of Ireland
novated 1ts interest in the facility and swap agreements to KW UK Loan Partrers Limmited In May 2012, this facility
was vaned to facilitate a potential ‘change of control’ and amend the repayment date to 31 December 2012 On 27
June 2012, the Annington Rentals (No 6) Limited and Annimgton Rentals (No 7) Limuited entered 1nto a four year
£1035 mulbion Facility Agreement with The Royal Bank of Scotland ple This facility allows funds to be drawn down
for a period starting on the date of the agreement and ending 45 months later The first drawdown will be used to
repay the existing Annington Rentals (No 6) Limited facility and outstanding swaps
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Operations

The Rentals Subgroup now controls some 1,614 (2011 1,569) properties and 18 a sizeable business 1n 1ts own right
There arc now cight subsidiaries within the Rentals Subgroup, seven of which own properties, the other managing
propertzes Each portfolio has a different characterisnc and 1s therefore subject to different management
considerations Strategic decisions, such as acquisitions, refurbishment programmes, letting criteria and disposals
are all taken by the rentals management team The day-to-day letung, billing, rent collectton and mainienance
activities are outsourced to Touchstone Corporate Property Services, who in turn use a network of local letting
agents 1o arrange spections and individual lettings This structure works well for the Rentals Subgroup given the
geographic spread of properties, and enables the in-house Portiolio Managers to maintain a strategic focus The
Portfolio Managers meet weekly to consider 1ssues anising and maintain fortnightly meetings with the Touchstone
Corporate Property Services team, 1n order to progress lettings and ensure appropriate action 1s taken with regards
void units, arrears etc
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Background

The Developments Subgroup was established 1in 1999 with the purpose of providing planming and development
support 10 the wider Group Where opportuniues arise to create added value through infill development or
wholesale redevelopment of landholdings, the Developments Subgroup wili provide the services of *Planming and
Development Consultant’ for the benefit of the Group

The Developments Subgroup will also carry out mtted development on 1ts own account and enter nto joint venture
arrangements with other landowners and developers where the combination of skills will yield higher returns At
present, the Developments Subgroup 15 involved in three joint venture arrangements as set out within description of
The Group within the Directors’ Report Business Review

The Developments Subgroup alse holds two strategic real estate related 1nvestments sn mainland Burope The first
of these 15 a strategic stake in Deutsche Anmington Immobilien GmbH (owner of approximately 190,000 residental
properties in Germany) The second 1s a minority stake in Autobahn Tank & Rast Holdings GmbH and Autobahn
Tank & Rast GmbH & Co KG, owner of 90% of German motorway concessions for petrol stations, shops,
restaurants and motels These investments are opportunities for the Developments Subgroup to support other parties
by providing equity and loans into complex structures, whilst adding value for the Developments Subgroup and its
stakeholders

Objectives and Strategy

The Developments Subgroup will continue to provide planming and development skills to the wider group At the
same ume, the Developments Subgroup will consider joint venture arrangements where a sharing of skills and
resources 15 considered to give opportunity for increased returns from UK based property developments We
previously reported that the Developments Subgroup would conunue 10 look for opportunities However, with the
uncertain market, ‘land transactions’ have effectively ceased 10 exist in recent times The Developments Subgroup
has developed some successful projects both individually and 1n joint ventures, and will continue to seek further
development opportuntties, once land buyers return to the market

Financing

Project Finance for developments directly owned by the Developments Subgroup 1s provided by way of intra-group
loans The 1nterest rate on these loans 1s fixed and repayable on a fixed date 1n accordance with loan agreements

Investment 1nto joint venture arrangements 15 financed 1n a sumilar way, except the repayment of such loans 1s
subordinated to any specific project finance raised direcily by the joint venture company, where relevant

Annington (DA) Investment Limited has an undrawn commitment to provide further investment nto Deutsche
Annington Immobilien GmbH via a Terra Firma Capital Partners Fund These committed but undrawn funds are
held by AHL 1n Euros Therefore any exchange rate gains or losses will fall within the Homes Subgroup

Annington Reserve Limuted, subsequent to the disposal of 49 8% of 1ts holding 1n the Autobahn Tank & Rast group
of companies 1n August 2007, 1s self-financing

Operations

The economc crisis has impacted upon activity, with the demand for residential development land all but drying up
The Developments Subgroup tecam continue to provide planning advice to the Group and have assisted 1n ad hoc
projects across the country Most of the effort this year has been involved with managing the Subgroup’s interest 1n
the joint venture companies Countryside Annington (Colchester) Limited and Countryside Anmngton (Mall Hall)
Limited These two companes have had to react to the tesung market conditions, but ended the year mn a
satisfactory position

Recently, the skilis and resources of the Developments Subgroup have been utilised by APL, to enable that
company to manage 1ts terest 1n The Inghs Consortium LLP, a joint venture entered into with surrounding
landowners to develop a total of 77 6 acres of land at Mill Hill, North London
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Employees

As an employer, the Group believes 1in mamntaiming an inclusive, professional and producuve working environment
in which equal opportumities are promoted and all discriminatory pracuces deterred All individuals are encouraged
to achieve personal and professional development whether 1t 1s through tramning or other means QOur employees
cover a wide range of professional skill sets so traiming 1s assessed and tailored to meet specific individual needs
The nature of the training 1s, therefore, very broad including both technical and soft skill based raiming At the end
of the year there were 50 (2011 50) employees 1n the Group and the average penod of employment was 9 2 years
(2011 8 90)

Social Responsibility

Whilst Annington will rent homes and redevelop properties, the principal activity of the Group 1s 1o recetve surplus
properties back from the SoSD and to refurbish and sell or rent these properues In doing so, our philosophy 1s to
provide good quality, value for money homes

Untl recently, 30% of Anmngton homes had been sold to Service or ex-Service personnel, but this 1s reducing
steadily due to changes in the accessibility of the United Kingdom residenual property market [n addition more
than 50% of those buying an Annington home have been first tme buyers  For the 12 months to end of March 2012
this had dropped to 22% Service and ex-Service personnel have benefited from a vartety of discounts totathing just
under £13 million

We always try to offer our homes at competitive prices with the most appropnate financial incentives, the aim of
which 1s to make house purchase affordable for more people We aim 1o creale environments 1n which people want
to live by uplifting street scenes, improving landscaping and changing the external appearance of the homes so that
some individuality and vanety can be incorporated into areas that might have lacked 1t previously

We ensure that our homes meet basic safe and sound criteria so that electrical, plumbing and heating systems are
thoroughly checked and defects or 1ssues that might affect a mortgage are rectified

Environmental

In refurbishing the properties, we not only seek to improve the local environment and the community, but we strive
to use sustamable methods of construction and materials In doing so, we endeavour 10 bring redundant housing
stock back into good repair, delivering much needed affordable housing back into the nanonal housing supply

Given the spread of location of the Group’s portfolio and proximity to MoD bases, there may be some concern about
contarmination resulting from previous uses However, our experience to date, 1s that only two sites released by the
SoS8D, have been found to have any traces of contaminatuon In both instances, action was taken to remove the
material and replace with ‘clean’ so1l The Group will comply with all legislauon and Health & Safety regulations
with regards to the handling of dangerous materials Given the age of some of the properties, there have been
instances where asbestos has been found Any such matenials have been, and will continue to be, professionally
removed and disposed of or, where advised to do so, left 1n site but appropnately marked

Trust and Charitable Donations

In further recogmuon of the portfolio’s origins, the Anmington Trust was established 1n 1996 for the benefit of
Service families iving on ‘the paich’, as u 1s known, with the objective of sponsoring community activities and
projects The Trust derives 1ts income from a capital fund that was set up at the time the MQE was purchased in
1996 Since then, the Trusiees, who include the Chairmen of the three Services’ Farmihes Federations, have
disbursed £315K (2011 £250K) to support 381 (2011 358) projects These have varied in size from small grants of
a few hundred pounds for pre-school activities, youth organmisations and sports clubs, to major awards of several
thousands of pounds to provide much nceded support for famlies at a ume when the Services are heavily engaged in
overseas operations
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OUR RESPONSIBILITIES

Trust and Charitable Donations {continued)

Quute separately, the Group itself has been involved 1n supporting the community We have supported a diverse
number of projects associated with the Services but falling outside the Trust’s charilable objects, ranging from small
community related projects, through goodwill adverusing and sponsorship of publications and events 1o major
exercises to ensure the continued use of community centres after MoD base closures For the last three years the
Group has funded the Anmington Trust a fixed sum of £25K per annum (to May 2011} However, given the
continuing low returns achieved on the Capital Fund, the Group has agreed additional increased funding of £50K per
annum {payable quarterly) for the next three years to June 2014 This will make a considerable difference to the
scope of the Trust, and to ensure that it can continue 1is activiues and raise 1ts profile within the service community

During the year the Group made charitable donations of £141K (2011 £65K), principally to local charities serving
the communittes in which the Group operates

MoD Relationship

The unique nature of the original sale and leaseback transaction means that properties released by the S0SD provide
the only product supply to the Group process As a result, the level of released umits directiy 1mpacts on the activity
levels and the number of properties available for sale The SoSD has absolute discrenon over what units will be
released and when As such, 1t 15 necessary to maintain good working relationships at all levels to ensure efficient
processes 1n handhing relecases for both parties It s also important for the Group to understand some of the
operational 1ssues affecting the SoSD's use of housing, 1 order to plan its resources

This understanding also enables the Group to help promote and implement solutions to some of SoSD’s housing
issues For example, there are instances where the SoSD does not have specific housing 1n certain areas Anmington
Rentals (No 6) Limited and Anmington Rentals (No 7) Limited have been able to assist by purchasing property 1n
some of these areas and entering into leases with the SoSD, with the flexibility that they have sought

There have been many changes in this relauonship fotlowing the introduction of the Defence Infrastructure
Organisanion (DIO) on | April 2011 and further changes are expected as the DIO completes 1ts journey towards full
operaung capability over the two years subsequent to its establishment Throughout this time of adjustment,
Annington intends 1o ensure conunued assistance 1s provided wherever possible and to maintain the excellent
working relauonships developed over the previous 15 years




LE GRAND ANNINGTON LIMITED

APPENDIX FIVE
DETAILS OF BOARD AND COMMITTEE COMPOSITION, REMIT AND
FREQUENCY OF MEETING

The Group 1s managed at the Annington Holdings plc level with oversight from the Company’s Board of Directors
The tollowing describes activities of the Annington Holdings plc Board of Directors

During the reporting year, the Board of Directors comprised the non-executive Chairman (E J Filkin) and Deputy
Chairman (Arr Vice Marshal (Ret’d} A F C Hunter), two further non-executive directors employed by Terra Firma
Capital Partners Limited (A P Chadd, K Dolenec) and F S Duncan and three executive directors (J B Chambers, J C
Hopkins and N P Vaughan) The Board met formally each quarter to review issues, progress being made and
performance against budget ‘Executive Review Meetings’, attended by the same 1ndividuals, were held during each
of the interveming months for a briefer update on performance and to discuss any issues which may require
resolution prior to the next formal Board meeting

Audit Committee

The Audit Comnuttee included the non-executive Chairman and Deputy Chairman and two independent directors
The Committee meets at least once per annum and received a report from the Auditor following substantial
completion of thewr audit work and considered the ongoing effectiveness of controls and procedures operated by the
executive team During the current period of ‘financial uncertainty’, the Commutice specifically considered the
appropnateness of preparing accounts on the ‘going concern’ basis

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Commuittee includes the non-executive Chairman and Deputy Chairman and two
independent directors The Commuttee meet as required, but meets at least once per annum to consider the overall
remuneration packages of all staff and to review the staff appraisal process, which provides evidence for salary
reviews and/or award of discretionary bonuses This year specific attentton has been given to the adequacy and
effectiveness of the staff appraisal format Proposals for changes will be considered prior to the next staff appraisals,
at the end of the year

Investment Committee

The Investment Commuttee included the three executive directors and meet as required to discuss and consider
appraised project strategies Any major projects or significant investments are referred to the Board for ultimate
approval

Senior Managers’ Meeting

A mecung of all sentor managers 15 held on the first Monday of each calendar month This ensures that all those
present are kept up to date with the Group’s progress and any 1ssues affecting the operation of the Group Those
present are charged with disseminating the information to their teams Each senior manager also has monthly
progress mectings with the CEQ, on a one-to-one basis

Directors’ Meeting

The executive directors along with associate directors meet every Monday morning 1n order to consider results from
the previcus week, provide an update on short-term 1ssues and to prionitise work for the coming week
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